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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2016 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

Mainland China’s continued economic slowdown and policy to
advocate frugality, coupled with the decrease in tourist arrivals
in Hong Kong (especially those from mainland China), affected

the retail, especially sales of luxury goods.

According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the number of visits
by the mainland Chinese tourists to Hong Kong fell by 3.0% to
about 45.8 million in 2015, outpacing the 2.5% decline in the
total number of visitor arrivals to the city which was about 59.3
million. The situation worsened in the first quarter of 2016 when
visits by the mainland Chinese tourists to Hong Kong slumped
15.1% year on year to about 10.4 million, once again exceeding
the 10.9% year-on-year decline in the total number of visitor

arrivals which was about 13.7 million.

The effect of the deteriorating tourist market spilled over into the
retail of clothes. Sales at wearing apparel retail outlets in Hong
Kong decreased by about 7.2% to about HK$52.11 billion in
2015 from the HK$56.16 billion in 2014. In the first quarter of
2016, the figure slumped 11.3% year on year to about
HK$13.65 billion from about HK$15.39 billion in the first
quarter of 2015. In addition, the growing trend towards a higher
proportion of the mainland Chinese tourists with lower spending
power, a strong Hong Kong dollar and the persistently high rents
in the city weighed on the profitability of the retail of luxury

goods there.

In mainland China, retail of apparel, shoes, headwear and
knitted products grew by 9.8% to about RMB1.3 trillion in 2015,
decelerating from the 10.9% growth in 2014 (Source: National
Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China).
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RESULTS

The Group’s main business of retailing women’s fashion apparel
to high-end and upper-middle markets was hit hard by the harsh
operating environment as it derived about 55.4% of its revenue
from Hong Kong during the Year. In the city, the Group, like
most other deluxe goods retailers, was affected by the fall in the
number of mainland Chinese tourists and the exorbitant rents,
especially in the prime and tourist locations where luxury brands
usually set up shops. About 18.3% of the Group’s revenue came
from mainland China, and the remaining 26.3% was made up by

sales in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

For the Year, the Group recorded a 21.9% decline in revenue to
HK$328 million and recorded a loss of HK$56.5 million, against
the profit of HK$11.3 million attributable to the shareholders for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Previous Financial Year”).
Gross profit margin decreased to 77.6% for the Year compared

with the 83.2% in the Previous Financial Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In an attempt to counteract the adverse market conditions, the
Group rationalised both its retail network and store locations,
and sought to raise efficiency by launching a VIP club
membership service (organizing the members’ visits to its
product showrooms for purchasing goods) in Hong Kong and by
forming alliances with several mainland Chinese online
shopping website operators. It also continued to enhance the
image of its house brands and the European brands that it had
introduced into its target markets, and remained committed to
maintaining the good standards of its products’ quality and
design. All these measures were aimed at reinforcing the
Group’s diverse-product, multi-brand strategy of targeting
different segments of the high-end and upper-middle markets for

women’s fashion apparel and accessories.
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During the Year, we consolidated the stores with good
performance and closed down the underperforming ones to
improve the stores’ per-square metre sales performance. In Hong
Kong, we tried to mitigate the pressure of high rents by
negotiating for lower rents for shop spaces in some locations
suitable for the positioning of both our existing and new brands.
On top of that, we organized shopping visits by customers of our
VIP club membership from mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore to our product showrooms in Hong Kong to raise the
cost efficiency and boost sales. The customers were offered
women’s deluxe fashion apparel with special and attractive
design at preferential prices. Our newly developed men’s wear
under our main house brand MOISELLE and another distinctive
fashion brand GERMAIN with French design concept were also

sold to such customers.

In mainland China, we continued to leverage e-commerce while
downsizing the retail operations to counteract the effects of high
rents and maintain the overall rental cost at a reasonable level.
For instance, we formed alliances with several mainland Chinese
online shopping website operators to entice the browsers of the
websites or social media to shop at our offline stores. This
online-to-offline business model can be an effective means of

boosting brand recognition and sales.

To maintain and expand our business presence and share of the
existing markets, we have been enhancing the image of our
house brands, including the upmarket MOISELLE which features
elegant daywear, stylish workwear that symbolizes
independence and glamorous evening dresses for special
occasions and the diffusion line m.d.m.s. (mademoiselle was
rebranded as m.d.m.s. during the Year to reflect its revamped
products for customers of a wider age range) which embodies
more wearable and straightforward contemporary fashion design
and targets a younger generation of trendy women. We also
diversified into menswear under MOISELLE and GERMAIN.

GERMAIN can serve as a springboard for our foray into
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menswear market because the brand features street fashion that
exudes a vibe of a strong character. In addition, we fostered
some European brands such as accessories label SEQUOIA for
the brand’s debut in the apparel market and two other
accessories brand COCCINELLE and LANCASTER through
distributorship. During the Year, we launched LANCASTER, a
French brand for accessories, mainly leather goods such as bags
for everyday use and travel and evening bags for men and
women. The launch of new brands and diversification into new
types of products were aimed at adding impetus to our business

development.

OUTLOOK

Having experienced the deteriorating market for women’s luxury
fashion apparel and accessories in 2015 and the first quarter of
2016, we are inclined to take a prudent approach to evaluating
the prospect for the coming financial year. Hong Kong’s retail
market seems unlikely to turn around soon since mainland
China’s slowing economy and the city’s strong currency could
combine to deter the mainland Chinese tourists from visiting
Hong Kong. Moreover, the growing trend towards a higher
proportion of the mainland Chinese visitors with weaker
spending power in the city seems irreversible. However, Hong
Kong’s exorbitant rents for shopping spaces, which have been
weighing on the retail sector’s profitability, could be brought
down to a lower level by the worsening retail market as the
landlords will have to come to terms with reality. We have been
negotiating for lower rents for shopping spaces in some prime
locations and will set up shops there if the prices are right so
that we can expand our business presence with both existing

and newly introduced brands.
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Having considered the changes to the tourism market in Hong
Kong, we have decided to adjust our strategy by paying more
attention to the city’s local, young customers. We will gear the
design of our products more to the local consumer preferences,
and will market such products to the local young people on our
own website. For instance, we will cooperate with local or
overseas celebrities in launching new brands that fuse the image
and design of the two parties, and the celebrities will also
endorse the products. Our initiative to tap the locals’
considerable spending power may pay off, especially if the rents
fall to a more reasonable level since we will retail the new
brands at our stores in prime locations. It will also serve to
reinforce our ongoing diverse-product, multi-brand strategy to
enhance our business presence. In addition, we will continue
with the measures that we have already adopted to cope with
the sluggish retail market. Among such measures are the
rationalisation of our retail network and store locations,
negotiating for lower rents for shop spaces in some suitable
locations and launching new brands, either of our own or
through cooperation with external parties, to zero in on new
target consumers. We believe that our prompt moves to adapt to
the changes in the markets will help us overcome some
difficulties in the operating environment. However, in the long
run, we are still optimistic about the business opportunity and

market potential of high-end fashion apparel in the regions.

The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions and
fashion trends in the markets and make appropriate adjustment

to the above plans to keep abreast of changes in the market.
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B APPRECIATION

RABRRESSHIERREREBZHERAEE On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
HAREEBN S UREEEBREINAKEEHK shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
SEAMELHNSORERMBAHE - and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

FE Chan Yum Kit
FRER AR Chairman

F8 —E-—XREANA=-TNAR Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Mainly targeting deluxe apparel markets, the Group operates
such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s. (mademoiselle was
rebranded as m.d.m.s. during the financial year ended 31 March
2016 (“the Year”) to reflect its revamped products for customers
of a wider age range) and GERMAIN, while engaging in
distributorship for international brands, including LANCASTER,
COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA (which is operated by a joint
venture of the Group). Each of the brands has its own distinctive
customer base, and is being managed separately by the Group's
management and designer teams. The Group retails its products
under the various brands at stores in prime locations. As at 31
March 2016, the Group had 90 retail stores and counters in
Hong Kong, first- and second-tier cities of mainland China,
Macau, Taiwan and Singapore, down from 95 as at 31 March

2015 because it rationalised the retail network.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

Hong Kong's retail sector had a hard time in 2015 and in the
first quarter of 2016 as decreased tourist arrivals, especially
those from mainland China, depressed sales. Exorbitant rents for
shop spaces, which had been determined based on previous
optimism about the retail market, did not go down to reasonable
levels and continued to exert severe cost pressure on the
businesses. During the Year, the Group was prudent about retail
network management -- it opened only five new stores but
closed down five other stores in the city. Revenue from its retail
operations in Hong Kong fell by 18.7% to approximately
HK$181,624,000, or approximately 55.4% of the Group’s
revenue. As at 31 March 2016, the Group operated 10
MOISELLE, 8 m.d.m.s., 4 COCCINELLE, 2 GERMAIN and 1 outlet
retail stores (As at 31 March 2015: 11 MOISELLE, 7 m.d.m.s., 4
COCCINELLE and 3 GERMAIN retail stores).



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ B¢ 4 [ A it 24 %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

B BRI i M o3 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

AENBRECZEHRE  ASEERBR/EHREMEE
T XBFEREANL  ERFMEZVIPES
EFEHEBERRIESBNRESR  BRE
AN - HHHSEHBEABEFE  AEER ==
—AFEAARBARTHVIPEEZERIE TR
“E-HFLABMRBEEBKRA c AREBIHELHEER
T2 & A BRLANCASTER BA$2 A0 Yg A SRR o

R B A it 3K
FEIRREERBERBFEMGEREEEER
MEEEEHECM2BERYR Bt XEE
At e TEEK BE_T—~"F=A=+—H
It AEBER A LE29BMOISELLE ~ 3/
m.d.m.s. R3BGERMAINIE S (BE=—Z—hF =
=+ — B 1t : 33BMOISELLE ~ 4Bm.d.m.s. 3
GERMAINIESH) » EFEE1I7EARBELARARNUE
EFNKENEFR2BIFET K E 5 o 35/ /5
EEAFTWAL60,1250008 T BEZE-Z—4H
F=A=+—HLHBFE (L—BHBEE ]
$#32.9% °

ATESHHESZEN  BARFRBEREERS
ERZEFER  AEERAFEESIPEAL
BEBYPUBELERSHE - RS EEMEE
HEERRE B EREE2AEEIAEEE
RSB -

The Group tried to cope with the harsh operating environment
by negotiating for lower rents for shop spaces, and attempted to
raise cost efficiency by organizing shopping visits by customers
of its VIP club membership from mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore to its product showrooms in Hong Kong. Targeting the
loyal customers with high spending power, the arrangement for
VIP club members’ visits to the showrooms began in May 2015
and started generating income in July 2015. It also launched
LANCASTER, a French brand for accessories to broaden the

revenue stream.

Operations in Mainland China

Mainland China’s economic slowdown and the government
measures to advocate frugality affected consumers’ appetite for
luxury goods, and as such, the Group downsized its retail
operations in the country. As at 31 March 2016, the Group
operated 29 MOISELLE, 3 m.d.m.s. and 3 GERMAIN retail stores
(As at 31 March 2015: 33 MOISELLE, 4 m.d.m.s. and 3
GERMAIN retail stores) in the country, including 17 stores which
were operated as consignment counters in department stores and
2 stores which were operated by franchisees. The 35 retail stores
generated a combined revenue of approximately
HK$60,125,000, down by approximately 32.9% compared with
that for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (“the Previous

Financial Year”).

Aiming to alleviate the pressure of high rents, raise cost
efficiency and tap into the growing popularity with e-commerce,
the Group formed alliances with several mainland Chinese
online shopping website operators during the Year. The initiative
enabled the Group to increase brand recognition and entice the
browsers of the websites or social media to shop at its offline

stores.

11
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Operations in Macau

The effect of mainland China’s slowing economy and
government measures to advocate frugality spilled over into
Macau’s retail market, leading to a decrease in the Group’s sales
in the city in the Year. However, the Group’s operations in
Macau remained profitable because of the low operating cost.
The Group operated 1 concept store, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE,
1 m.d.m.s. and 1 COCCINELLE retail stores in the city. The 5
retail stores generated a combined revenue of approximately
HK$41,438,000, which was down by approximately 22.7%
compared with that in the Previous Financial Year. The numbers
of various types of the Group’s stores in the city were the same

as those in the Previous Financial Year.

Operations in Taiwan

The Group operated 12 MOISELLE and 4 m.d.m.s. stores and 3
outlets in Taiwan as at 31 March 2016 (As at 31 March 2015: 13
MOISELLE and 8 m.d.m.s. stores). The retail stores in Taiwan
generated a combined revenue of approximately
HK$34,993,000, accounting for approximately 10.7% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year. In order to satisfy the
demand for mid-range or out-of-season clothing, the Group

opened 3 outlets there.

Operations in Singapore

The Group’s business in Singapore recorded a 0.4% decrease in
sales to approximately HK$9,816,000 during the Year. As at 31
March 2016, it ran 2 MOISELLE and 2 GERMAIN stores,
1 M CONCEPT store and 1 outlet in the country (31 March
2015: 2 MOISELLE and 2 GERMAIN stores).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 21.9% to
approximately HK$327,996,000 (2015: HK$419,965,000) during
the Year as compared with the Previous Financial Year. Due to
the deterioration in performance of mainland China market, the
revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 25.5% to approximately HK$146,372,000 (2015:
HK$196,558,000) during the Year as a result. The segment
turnover ratio had arrived at approximately 44.6% which was
approximately two percentage points lower as compared to the

Previous Financial Year.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased as well
by approximately 18.7% to approximately HK$181,624,000
(2015: HK$223,407,000) which was mainly due to the

decreased sales from the mainland Chinese tourists.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 77.6%, as compared to 83.2% of the Previous
Financial Year. The gross profit margin decreased but remained
in the normal range of gross margin of the Group during
previous years. Operating expenses for the Year totalled
approximately HK$327,630,000, compared to approximately
HK$350,582,000 for the Previous Financial Year, decreased by
approximately 6.5%. The decrease in revenue in addition to the
decrease in gross profit margin, had resulted in the operating
loss of 19.0% (2015: operating profit of 1.6%).

The loss for the Year was approximately HK$56,515,000 (2015:
profit of HK$11,331,000), decreased by approximately
HK$67,846,000 or 598.8%. The decrease was in line with the

decrease in operating margin.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations mainly with
internal generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent
financial policy such that it can meet the financial obligations
when they fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for
the development of the Group’s business. At the end of the Year,
the Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances
amounted to approximately HK$139 million (2015: HK$184
million). Cash and bank deposits were held mainly in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has foreign operations
and certain of its net assets are exposed to the risk of foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations. During the Year, the
Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from the cash and bank
deposits denominated in Renminbi. The management regularly
monitors the foreign currency exchange risk of the Group and

may consider hedging activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group maintained secured bank loan
of HK$8 million at operating subsidiary level financing its
working capital. As at 31 March 2016, the Group maintained
aggregate composite banking facilities other than secured bank
loans of approximately HK$51 million (2015: HK$41 million)
with various banks, of which approximately HK$2 million (2015:

HK$2 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2016, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 3.4 times (2015: 5.2 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’” equity) was 1.3% (2015:

Zero).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2016, leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of approximately HK$23 million (31 March 2015:
HK$Nil) were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the
Group.
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Contingent liabilities

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong (the
“Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was being
sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of summons in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
respect of alleged infringement of copyright. The generally
indorsed writ of summons was subsequently served on the Hong
Kong Subsidiary but the statement of claim has not yet been
served and the Hong Kong Subsidiary continues to deny any
liability in respect of the above claim. An external counsel has
been engaged to defend the said claim and the directors will
continue to seek advice from the Group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim as at
31 March 2016.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed 702 (2015: 731)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, mainland China,
Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Shajing,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of
fabrics.
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The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains well-
established relationships with trustworthy raw material suppliers
and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each model of
its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and Quality
Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also requires all
business partners, raw material suppliers and production vendors
to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory requirements on
product safety.

The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their
trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as direct
sales and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the
Group’s business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brands for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new or improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects
other parties’ intellectual property rights.



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ B¢ 4 [ A it 24 %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

B BRI i M o3 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

REBTFRANEEMERMERRELED 22
ARG EBHEETHHELAZ - HlM XEHBAE
SOGO (HONG KONG) ZZ#20160 €& B/ |
Z— o

ARSI R EME S ERE -

The Group also understands that it is not an isolated functioning
unit in the market and society so it has sponsored charitable
work to contribute to the common good. For instance, the Group
was one of the “Gold Sponsors” of SOGO (HONG KONG)
Charity Run 2016.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the
sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 57, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 39
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr.
Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is currently a
member of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a
member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and serves
on the expert group on fashion industry under the working group
on manufacturing industries, innovative technology, and cultural
and creative industries of the Economic Development
Commission. He is the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber
of Commerce. He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 57, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 39 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She is a member of Zonta Club of New Territories, an
honorary president of Hong Kong Federation of Women, a
co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women’s Federation and a member
of HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee and of Hong Kong
Woman Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association. Ms. Tsui is
the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 38, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is a member of the Mainland
Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company,
and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan
Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 28
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 27 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as China-
appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as
notary public in December 2009. She is a member of the Board

of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently a regional director of Full Throttle Films Limited. He
has 25 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.
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Senior Management

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 46, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 25 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom and a holder of the

practitioner’s endorsement of HKICS.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 28, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. In addition, he is
also responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
Arts London. He is a member of the General Donations/Special
Events Organising Committee under the Campaign Committee of
The Community Chest of Hong Kong and of Hong Kong CPPCC
Youth Association. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of
Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1T and A.6.7 as
below, the company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently, Mr.
Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the company. Due to prior business engagements
external to the company, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the company held on 8
September 2015.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six directors in total, with three
executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. The composition of the Board during the year is set

out as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman)

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

Mr. Chui Hing Yee (passed away on 29 September 2015)
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

During the year ended 31 March 2016, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H R
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

H R %
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 1/1
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 0/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 0/1
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 0/1
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 11

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.
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Mr. Chan Yum Kit

RIDBERL

Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley

REREE

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

director are set out as follows:

FrEZEIR BB

Training received and date

BESF EHEE
—E-AHEZ-A=-+MHNA
Seminar on Spin-off

24 February 2016

BRI/ LTS
—E-A"EZA=-t+MHNA
Seminar on Spin-off

24 February 2016

To Disclose or Not to Disclose
—E-XE=ZANARH

To Disclose or Not to Disclose
8 March 2016

Overview of Hong Kong Public
Merger and Acquisition Regime
—E2-A%+-A+MHMA

Overview of Hong Kong Public
Merger and Acquisition Regime
14 December 2015

AR E

Training provider

BBLETAREE

The Chamber
of Hong Kong

Listed Companies

BEBEHAREE

The Chamber
of Hong Kong

Listed Companies

ERESEE

The Hong Kong Institute

of Directors

BEEESRRESZS

The Hong Kong Securities

and Investment Institute

The directors have provided records of the training they received

to the company. The details of training records provided of each

FREEE

Time spent

2.5/ B

2.5 hours

2.5/NBF

2.5 hours

1/ B

1 hour

3/ B

3 hours
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Director Training received and date

ERRLZL Boardroom Update and Non-Executive
Director Programmes
—E-AFMA=+AH-
RA=Zt+=ZB - NA+NHR
AARH

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Boardroom Update and
Non-Executive Director
Programmes
20 April, 23 June,
18 August &

BAIR G E

Training provider

BORUCKESI BB

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Fit 5 B 7S

Time spent

67)) B

6 hours

9 September 2015

AEELZITERENBE=E—~"F=A=1+—H
tFEERTEEEMEMRERFMEFERERR
235 FE 8% o

FBTESZEB
BYFNTESZERAYMT  UARBEALF
REABERMARESE -

BUFHTESZHEYLM

ARBAECWBMEBLFATESRELHRASE
3BMRBHBE-E-—AE=ZA=+t-HLFEZ
BURRE IRBZBIUFHTESYEBRILIA
j: o

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided training record on her
fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2016 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b. Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c.  Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, three remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

HH JE 50 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 3/3

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, determined the
discretionary bonuses of the executive directors and approved
the terms of executive directors’ service agreements and non-

executive directors’ appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
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The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
Nil - 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

7 and 8 to the financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to external auditors is

analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
BT R Audit services 2,054,000
e 5t R TE Non-audit services 202,000
2,256,000

ZEREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

AAREBLETRAEI2IRRILIEREES &
EEERERANEE 2 MERRBERABES -
EREZEEEHA DA ZUBLFATESEN D
MAREELL (EF)  REREERERARL
T WHESSER-

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu
Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports
to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

H R %
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the
nature and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in

relation to the following:

e  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ [ B¢ 4 [ A it 24 %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

1 SR R

Corporate Governance Report

BE-_Z—R"E=A=1+—HLEE ZES=EEE
EEMM TERAEE=EEE£EXRARETEE
ERAEERBEEFE BN UHHEEER
TERBRZERERERE - RIESBMER &5
EEZEER BEAEB2HEXEERE—
SRR E NI EETIE o

EERRKREZER
ARBERNE  REAQEFREABELIAZHH
e

B % B E A
FEEBUGBMARRENMBERR 2EMERRZ
BRCHRBENEVEZBEIZBEAHRES -

% 3R HE R

RIBEADR 2 ERMEE8F  EAMMEZERA
HEATORAQRAHERS (MERAQARR
RERRAEF) +2-—2—EBHZERR - BRME
AR REEEBONESEHA AR ZARWERT
FERE BRESSEARBRREBIAG  UEEF
REPIERANEAEE ) BZASEREZZHF>
EEMBERAET -ME2R-t—BHRN EST
AERRSREBMZARE  AIBERATEITUERK
FRABH MBEBRARESEREERAEMESE
EENERXEHEANARMHERAMEHEN -

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and
evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the directors were
dedicated to implement various initiatives to further enhance the
existing internal control system alongside with the ongoing

business development of the group.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group
regarding their responsibilities on the financial statements is set

out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 42 and 43.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.
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If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong
respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report.

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 9 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report and note 25 to the
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the
group's total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
REBERBE
B ESL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
RAMER The largest supplier 26%
hREEEE Five largest suppliers in aggregate 43%

RNEEHEEMERS SEAQAES HBEA
THAQRREMRR (REBRAFEAQRARAE
ZR5%) EREXTBEFRHAREER TS -

AFEHE
AEBRGELAREVBREESE2EEREERE
BEMECHMNEIS9E160H °

IR 2
ARARAER-FB-—AR"E-ATHERIRNERIEML
ZHERE(ZE-—RF §R4B) - ESRE
BAOR=ZZ-—AR"ENANBBIRREMZAER
RRNBE—ZE-—R"F=ZA=t+—HLEFEZRH
RESR2BIM (ZZ2—HF : BR4EBA) -

BERBX
AEBRATFEZZEZEBRAE29,0008 T (ZF
—FF : 139,000 7T) °

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
159 and 160.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of Hong Kong one cent per share (2015:
Hong Kong 4 cents per share) was paid on 15 January 2016. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong two cents per share (2015: Hong Kong 4 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
8 September 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$29,000 (2015: HK$139,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during
the year are set out in note 24(c) to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to
profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

Mr. Chui Hing Yee (passed away on 29 September 2015)
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
article 87 of the company’s articles of association and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

NGz ERER Eaflaastt
EEnE Beneficial Approximate EaME
Name of director interest in shares percentage of interests Nature of interest
BRERAN L 190,872,000 66.29% INCIVE 93
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% i3
Family
2,100,000 0.73% {EPN
Personal
(Btat1)&(2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
®ImELZ L 190,872,000 66.29% NGV 93
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% EYi3
Family
2,100,000 0.73% L{EPN
Personal
(Btat1)%(2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
BREZEE 900,000 0.31% A
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
=EHERLE 30,000 0.01% & A
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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EERFETRAEBRE S 2 B8 (/)

(1) 190,000,000 7% % B& 19 J3 ASuper Result
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) 8 o
Super ResultZ RZASTI IR ERAR & ([FREE D
E#mGEzt ((Hat]) 2Rl BEEET46.7%R
46.7% ° FRE4E R R L T I & {157 B A Super
ResultFT#58 2 190,000,000 IR 17 # # 5 1 =)

3¢
m °©

872,0000% % % B 10 J3 HNew First Investments
Limited ([New First]) #%8 o New First:Z lRA T3
HREERBRLZETDBIERER0% REER
HBRLELTHEEEHE B RNew FirstFiiFE 2
872,000/ R0 R #EH N Bl ©

2 BHRREERBZEIHBRE RRLTEED/E
EREEZROT  REEBRRAERRKES
RZ IR e

o —ESRETHEARUEEREARS
BESAREFEBRRERT - ETESTERER
BREBELER®D - ZFROEMR LI THARE
BREREMRRASGBESRHEASHARESLS A
EAMBEAR 2D IKRSER ZEF -

BREuiEd RZE—R"F=ZBA=+—H0 &X2AH
FNEESRFETHAESREEEBEZHEALHE
BERAQNTRAEEMEBREIE(EERBFSRHE
RBIEXVER) 2R 10 - HERMGORESFF  #EX
ARARBEBFRBEMROIEIDGRZBEEFEEZE
AR RERBEEFANERAARER
FreEsSKA -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested in
the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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HE > AA7 - REEMZERAF - HEBQRHNE
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RARESHFETHAERHE BB ARMIS
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EFEmER -

RATRAEAZERHE R

RZZB-AF=ZA=1t—H BRAQAREES
R ERPIEBMR 2R EFE 2B RRMATRE
BRALNBAESREZTHRAEZH  UTFRRERA
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EXVRHEANT 2 BEHAR ¢

REREMHE

Name of shareholder

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2016 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EEARE2MES BT

BB 2HBROE DT

HRRO AR Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

MtaE : Super Resultz RATI AR EERBKLZ T D BIE
HEE46.7%K46.7% °

BRERER EXNESRIBTHRAERES 28
B | AR RRAEEREETHRAS 2 #RI
BRAQABARERSZRPERIEBMZRER
BEzERiMpAesE ROB-—A"F=A=1t—A0
WEEMATRARRARDNABERD P HERED

R o

190,000,000 65.99% (H1iL) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
28(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.
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Z B Em AUDITORS

ESHESTTMSHEMESEER  HREBEEME - B KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
EFRETMEBMEETLADRAVRBE ZRBEER appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
BREEEHENRRBFASTLRER - auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

RES

g
s

By order of the board

e Chan Yum Kit
BRERAR Chairman
BB —E-—R"EXAZTNH Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 44 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the group as at 31
March 2016 and of the group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2016
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HE-Z—XRE=A=1t—HBILEE (ABE5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-XRE —E-RF
2016 2015
ks T Tr
Note $/000 $/000
e #5 Revenue 3 327,996 419,965
B E AR Cost of sales (73,387) (70,422)
ER Gross profit 254,609 349,543
HAtb g A Other revenue 4 8,923 8,881
Hahs  (FiE) B4 Other net gain/(loss) 4 1,790 (1,200)
HER D HERA Selling and distribution costs (255,918) (273,822)
THRAMEERX Administrative and other operating expenses (71,712) (76,760)
KE (BB w7 (Loss)/profit from operations (62,308) 6,642
& A Finance costs 5(a) (158) (1)
REWMEZHERE Valuation gains on investment properties 11 14,420 11,432
FIEFERLREEYZ Valuation gains/(losses) on land and buildings
HEWSE (EiE) held for own use 11 1,138 1,750)
EBiEBE RN ZEEB Share of loss of associate 13 (419) (188)
ELEEARZ Share of (loss)/profit of joint venture
(B#8) &F 14 (4,087) 505
BREBLAT (B51B) %A (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 (51,414) 16,640
Fri8® Income tax 6(a) (5,101) (5,309)
Fr (B8R EF (Loss)/profit for the year (56,515) 11,331
THIA LB : Attributable to:
RAE KRR Equity shareholders of the company (56,515) 11,331
R (BB BT (Loss)/earnings per share 10
82X Basic $ (0.20) $0.04
B Diluted $ (0.20) $0.04

F2EI56BEMFBARTEFR 2 —BD - B
AABEZREEEFAFSE2ESREFBER
MizE24(b) °

The notes on pages 52 to 156 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company attributable to the loss for the year are set out in
note 24(b).



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B 4 [ # iR 2 %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

fo B 1R 2 e L At 2 i A 2% 2%

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—XRE=A=1t—HBILEE (ABE5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EB-ARE “ZE-hF
2016 2015
B = Fr Fr
Note $/000 $/000
Fr(EBR) BT (Loss)/profit for the year (56,515) 11,331
FRHEHM2E KRR Other comprehensive income
(MErHE) for the year (after tax) 9
RIERAJREEF 7 Items that may be reclassified
FEnZHEE subsequently to profit or loss:
BEERBIRINGE Exchange differences on translation of
NEHBERE financial statements of subsidiaries
ZERERE outside Hong Kong (14,362) (1,395)
RIEBKETEEH T Items that will not be reclassified to
ErRm2IER - profit or loss:
FEBRALTER Surplus on revaluation of land and
BEYcEHER buildings held for own use 14,984 24,905
622 23,510
FAZEKBEE Total comprehensive income
for the year (55,893) 34,841
TH ARG : Attributable to:
RAE KRR Equity shareholders of the company (55,893) 34,841
E2FI56BE 2B AR BHRR 2 —D o The notes on pages 52 to 156 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-Z—XE=H=+—8 (LABEKFIR) At 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—RF —E-0fF
2016 2015
M &F Fr T Fr T
Note $/000 $’000 $7000 $7000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REM* Investment properties 11 146,415 126,509
M- BERRE Property, plant and equipment 11 390,375 395,567
REE QAR 2R Interest in an associate 13 851 965
NEERRA 2R Interest in a joint venture 14 . -
HihEE Other assets 15 22,595 17,923
BEFEHEE Deferred tax assets 21(b) 6,187 8,375
566,423 549,339
RBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 16 57,700 70,479
FEWERR R M EUWFR Trade and other receivables 17 37,528 51,149
A ERIE Tax recoverable 21(a) 1,688 4,230
BERBITER Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 138,983 183,892
235,899 309,750
REBEE Current liabilities
FERBRM R EMEF Trade and other payables 19 48,460 54,742
FE A5 B4 18 Tax payable 21(a) 1,286 758
BEMBITERN Secured bank loans 22 8,236 -
B Provisions 23 12,149 4,645
70,131 60,145
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R-ZT—RFE=A=+—H (LLB¥FIR) At 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-XRE —E-1F
2016 2015
g3 T T Fr Tr
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
RBEERE Net current assets 165,768 249,605
EERARBEAMESE  Total assets less current liabilities 732,191 798,944
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFfESHRERE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 73,403 69,867
EERME NET ASSETS 658,788 729,077
BRI CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[ Share capital 24(c) 2,880 2,880
e Reserves 655,908 726,197
HRRER TOTAL EQUITY 658,788 729,077
EEeN_E—ANEANATH/\BBEL ALY o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2016.

)

)

) EZE Directors
BRI IG5 )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
E 156 E BB HRER S — 2D o The notes on pages 52 to 156 form part of these financial

statements.
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NEZA=+—BILEE (LBE5R) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R
B
EE  ERRE
BHAE  landand BRR
Rx  RHEE AfeRE EXRE Sty  buldng REER E#
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity
i3 n n Tr Tn n n Tr n
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
RZE-MEMA-A2&H  Balanceasat 1 April 2014 2,880 05,327 121 45,852 9336 279,560 325712 728,788
Zg-RE/-1f2 Changes in equity for 2014/15
Bi#29:
gl Profit for the year - - - - - R £ A VK
E2EYs Other comprehensive income 9 - - - (1,395) - 24905 - 13510
rERERE Total comprehensive income - - - (13%) - 24905 11331 34,841
EFEHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (23,035 (23,035)
AEERERZRE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - s s
R=E-1E=A Balance at 31 March 2015
t-Bz&R 2880 65327 1021 4457 9336 304465 302491 729077
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HE-Z—XRE=A=1t—HBILEE (ABE5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R

BEN

EE  ERRE
BH#LNR  Landand BRxR
Bx  RGEE HtHE EXRE Sttty buldng REER E#
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds  reserve profits Equity

it i tr T e i i fr T
Note  §000 000 000 000  §'000  §'000  §'000  §000

RZB-TEMA-AZER  Balance asat 1 April 2015 2,880 65327 121 44457 9336 304465 302491 729,077
Z2-1F/-RE2 Changes in equity for 2015/16:
L
FhEE Loss for the year - - - - - - (56,515 (56515)
A2 ENS Other comprehensive income 9 - - - (14362) - 1498 - 622
PENGEEH Total comprehensive income - - - (14362 - 14984 (56,515)  (55,89)
LEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)i) - - - - - - 517 (1517)
REECERZRE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (2,879) (2,879)
RZE-AE=R Balance at 31 March 2016
=t-Bek8 2,860 65,327 121 30,095 9336 319,449 231580 658,768
E52E156BEZMEFB AT KHRER 2 —D o The notes on pages 52 to 156 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

NE=RF=+—HI4E (JAE®5R) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—RF —E-RF
2016 2015
o & T Fr T Fr
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $7000
RETED Operating activities
e (FrA) Cash (used in)/generated
FBEzRe from operations 18(b) (22,817) 23,123
[ERRE 2] Tax paid
—RE/ () - Hong Kong Profits Tax
BERAER refunded/(paid) 1,291 (9,546)
—-BBEHNEHN — Income tax outside
Frie®t Hong Kong paid (1,182) (1,141)
REFEH (A Net cash (used in)/generated
FiBzREeFHE from operating activities (22,708) 12,436
RERED Investing activities
FRAEB=@EA#% Decrease in deposits with banks
B8 2 AT with maturity more than three
RO months when placed = 2,503
BAREYX - Payment for purchase of investment
M- B properties, property, plant and
SESCRNEN equipment (12,467) (46,223)
HEME  BER Proceeds from disposal of property,
RBAERIE plant and equipment 251 8
2 F R Interest received 2,464 3,096
REFEA Net cash used in investing
ZEEFE activities (9,752) (40,616)
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HEBESREE
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z—XRE=A=1t—HBILEE (ABE5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-AE “ZE-hfF
2016 2015
(s T T Fr Tr
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
BMETH Financing activities
ENFFE Interest paid (158) (1)
2fKRE Dividends paid (14,396) (34,552)
MIBERTERZ Proceeds from new bank loans
PG50 8,720 -
BERTEN Repayment of bank loans (484) -
MEFTBAZ Net cash used in financing
REFE activities (6,318) (34,553)
ReRELZEEY Net decrease in cash and
W EE cash equivalents (38,778) (62,733)
RENZRER Cash and cash equivalents
Re%EY at beginning of the year 183,892 247,438
BEXBE o HE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (6,131) (813)
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents
HEeEEY at end of the year 18(a) 138,983 183,892
F2EIS6HZMABAMBHRERZ —HD ° The notes on pages 52 to 156 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #%5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FEEHEE

(@)

B 59
ZEVBEBRRCEREBEFTMAENE
ABER Z(EBMBHREEL) (LE
BMESMEERZERN(E B BIREE
By (BEREFEIRERR) BB
REAFRARERBATKRAZHERE
MimEH c ZEPBBRTIFEEBHER
SHERLAAFS TR ZERAKE
BE - UTRAEERANETESTTEE
BE -

ERETMASEHEME THIEREE
AH(EBRBREER)  URAEE
RARBzAETHHBEERERLAH
RERH - RASTHHERBEZSHH
B ERERZEEANEEERE %R

HEZEWBHRRD  LERHEEEC) -

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBE(E)

(b)

MBBREZERUEE
BE-_Z-—X"F=ZB=+-HLFEZ
REMBRREERADATAREWB LA
(ZBAIFEE]) UREAEBREE D
FAREGE QAT 2R o MEM B RER TR
FARFHEEERBRERAL  HTIHEE
TSR RESIR (R T X2 et BUERFTE
)RR

- REWERRMEIN) R

- HthEITHREEY ZHEEL
U MERERES B (R
1(g) & 1(h)) °

EHUEFE(EBYBREEN) 28
BREXFEEEBFHHE - Rt RR
R MZEHE - G RBREFERER
ZERARAREERAE - WARF
XEYER - REMHRBRBRIIRES
FERREEEEEREEBRATIE
BEZZHEAMAZREEMEL » 5
ERBREEREH B A REERE MR
MEH2EER BB ZREENRESRMG
A2 EE -BRBEFZREERIRMGETER

=

F o

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and
the group’s interest in an associate and a joint venture.
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

—  other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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(A7 #%5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBER(A)

(b)

(c)

MBEBRZEREE (F)

REBSERAEG RABERRAEL
FHE o EEHART BT NREEER - A
FRFERGHETEN®ER - W2HE
BREREACHEZ F-E N 2o k)
AR ENERRURBHER -

BRI E R (E S B R 5 )
B HT{E L B TS SR B A B S
REETABNEEEHORER - DRH

BHREZ2D
EBEHTARCEFTHINAEES
AEH B ERE RN (BB IERE
BI) 2T

- (BEBEHEIE IR ZBITL
BEWEF - REFNTE  EBEH

o
TA

- (BBUBEHEEA) —FE-FFF
—E - FHCFENE

~ (BAMBHEER) —E——FF
—E-CEANFENE

1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current

accounting period of the group:

- Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012

Cycle

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle
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(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBE(E)
(0 BHBREZRE(H)
AEBERA S E 2R E AR

LRz ERRZE - RAEERI(E
BYBHRELE) 2HETRMOT

(BEEERDEIIRZ KT ES
wH - REEFTE - fESH

ZEBRIASIAT —BHE  BEE[LY
BEXF=FRAERANTEHMNNSE
FTHRNEHERE - EHFREZZEBET
FFTRENRER - AR LS HRER
AEHBEERBREREDEHESRE
BARRE - MASEBEERRAERAE

ERATE - R BBEIAHZENE
BRUELE -

(BBUBHEER) —FE—FFF-F
——ER-E-—FEF_E—=FH
ZFEHE
HWEBH s FERERENEERZ
BT ER EAMmAER 2 HEERT - Hd
(BEBETTEI)SE24REHHE L HEIC
FOER - EUKEBES INBRER
AEEREFTEEBAERE THRE
BHEEER TERKEAESEEER
BREENIEEEAERBEMELENS
HoHRAEBETEEEEARANEEE
EEABRE > HULZSEIAEAER
BERFFEIRTE -

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the

amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions
from employees or third parties under defined benefit
plans. When the contributions are eligible for the
practical expedient provided by the amendments, a
company is allowed to recognise the contributions as
a reduction of the service cost in the period in which
the related service is rendered, instead of including
them in calculating the defined benefit obligation. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the group did not operate any defined

benefit plans.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS
24, Related party disclosures has been amended to
expand the definition of a “related party” to include a
management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, and to
require the disclosure of the amounts incurred for
obtaining the key management personnel services
provided by the management entity. These
amendments do not have an impact on the group’s
related party disclosures as the group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management

entities.
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(LA #%1 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TR BR (A)
d) HEAF
WEARRESAREEHNOE - A%

(e)

BAEAERZESHEHEERFEZ
AEERNERNER - WEEBEEZX
ERNELIZEZEER  AKEHZ

ERAAEYE EFEAKEREES
ZRENE AEEE (AAKEHEMLA
tHAEZ)BERE-

SERMEARNKRESDBEHMIKA
HEZEAKLARLEEFEMBRE
PEREFE - REREIERNERE - £H
RNBRXEZRRERAREELENEFARE
REf  HERRGEVBRRBZEE
o EEANREELENRERERN
EEH EEARBREAERE - BEHEER
RREEREBRTCEREECHER
oo

R B BN R PTRRK B QAR
& REEAREEMRESSR (RHE
1) BARR

E-XAKERAATHA
R (BRSEMBEREERER ZHE)
BEARE N (BFEHIHAREMNAE
B)zRAd -

P2y

=N DAﬁtZﬁﬁ BAREES A
FEAEMERUSATA s EYZE
B2 45 I m;ﬁ%ﬁlﬁ;ﬂ#zﬁé*}%

m W b) HD

°

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The
group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the group or
company has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group
or company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to

the net assets of the arrangement.
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(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBE(E)

(e)

BELARREEDRE (F)

BENAHARERAZRERRERE
RESHBHRERPIIER - REERE R
BRUBAANER  LABEARERFE
MAEBRKE B EBERRERETH
RFEENARE(WA) - ARFAE
BRERRECEFEECRBERNE
BREBEREZEMBREBEFELRAR
(REFFE1G) - EARUWEE R 2B &
o AEBERRECERBBR 2K
BERFEXERINEFRESEERN
RABERTER  MARBEARGRRKRE
EERBBRGREEME2EKE - 8
REEEZHRBERDER -

HERNEEEEBELADRGE LT
EIRBBEPTGED - AAKRENERS
HEZT  WEFLHRZE-DEER  HEX
SEMAENEZRAEEEERERR
EREENZEERD - BEBHME

FEEFECREARBEETEZR
EREE EREELBRASEENBEE
“_ﬁA%ﬂﬁzhﬁ%EZE@E%

ﬁ
m

FEEEBENARGERRAZEARS
ﬁ?iz**ﬁﬁé%&$%l&ﬁh
EhEMG BB RIS BROKRE
BEERBERACEREEREMES
RELRERERSNRERERAE

e

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the group’s share of the acquisition
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
note 1(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition post
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s
interest is reduced to Nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with
the group’s long-term interests that in substance form
part of the group’s net investment in the associate or

the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its associates and
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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(A7 #%5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBER(A)

(e)

M

BELARREEDRE (F)

HRBERNRA 2 REZANGE LT Z
REFHBMARER - AFSEHAER
BfEmD - Rz ZREEERBEEDEA
IR - REMBRT » EXREERET HE
ERRAIZEAFEISHUEENT 2E
g REZEREQCAZ2MEEE AR
JMEHE  HERCBEBNEBESZRAE
B EMRKREERTE HHIEHERRF
BRZABREQRRAZEBZUQNRERE
R MZERARRADEEIESREEZ

NRE -

EARBHBMRRERA - REERRARE
&N E 2 RERE A R AR E S
BARRMEEIG) -

REWME
REVEREARIESUAR S A
EXRBEMUEERSZERRER 2L
R HEEY (RKEE1(h) - EhERE
BEREERRBEFE 2 L4 -

REMEZ D RESR - REMEAIARE
22 RBREINHEREWEMELEZ
FARESBEGERERTER - RE
W 2B WA RZRMEE (0GBl s
EWN-

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in joint venture or vice versa, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, when the group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial

asset.

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated

at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(r)(ii).
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(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TEEHBE(E)

)

(g

REWE (E)
MRAEEULEREREMERERN
MEESWAR RAEAEE  BEZ
RESRBEYEX 2 EESERREY
E o DEAREMEZEMNMERTE ZA
RAXNELURERERE 2D (R
T(h) — % MEBRAZETHREFEN
BMEMAEHE AMWREWEER - HE
TR 2 AR XESIRIFE(h) °

Hit%E  BERRE
EREMAEREIEZEFEAZL
RE Y (RIMFE1() » REMGEHE
PR - BNREM BBz A RBERARZE
AREHTE -

EfEsAR-—REBREBEHET  ®
REZEEE2RASHEEANFEHRER
ARAEEECBEHLIBEERRE -

M BERRBZHMIBEZRANRR
BITERBEEES R (RMEIG) -

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(g

Investment properties (continued)

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note

1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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TEEHBER(A)

(g)

Hi%  BERRE ()
EMFFRANNEREENEZS R
ERAAMEERSEEE  YRRRES
ZHEEMARFETBEILR - BTIER
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- WREBREMEA MEEENE
MBEBBZEEEEBEEMA
FRARBRNEE EEEBREXRY
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- WRUEBEE-HEENEGLES
MEBERIZ - AIEHBREME
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WENHENE BERREEEMEE
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EMRBEAREBEN  MAEEHIE
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits and is

not reclassified to profit or loss.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being 50 years from the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
5 years and the

period of the lease

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

-  Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)~ Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a

finance lease (see note 1(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(e)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note
1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).

- For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period to
identify indications that property, plant and
equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts) and investments in associate
and joint venture in the company’s statement of
financial position may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposals
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and

(if)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fee payable, using the effective

interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(q)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
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(p)

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

(ii)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the end of the
reporting period unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or
the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(1)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(g)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

()

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation outside
Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the group;
(ii) has significant influence over the group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s

parent.

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
group or an entity related to the group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the group or to the
group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 11(c) and 25 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value in
use or fair value less cost of disposals. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.
Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in the
timing and magnitude of the future cash flows and fair
value less cost of disposals, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from its actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be

affected by the accuracy of the estimations.

Impairment of trade debtors

If objective evidence indicates that the carrying
amount of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the
assets may be considered “impaired” and an
impairment loss may be recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the group about loss events
such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If
there is a change in the objective evidence of
impairment in relation to the debtors, the actual
impairment loss would be higher or lower than the
allowance for doubtful debts recognised in the

financial statements.
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2.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(o)

(d)

Write-down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write-
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of this

estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

83



84

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #%5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2. EEFHER MG (F)

(e)

PR BERREB

EEMEH - BESRBREERSRA
i BEMAREEETREHBBRA
RPINRENER - AEBESFATME
RENBBERHEMERR T FHEREER
B-HABRXZNEESEHRERTUEZE
EELD  BENBERHEMAMNZEN
2 MHZEXZNHREEREERDE
HENEHE  AUHEBEEEREFLHER
BENFENEE-

3. RERDAHE

(@)

(b)

W
AEEZETEZEBRRS  RE - TER
3% B 1) AR & S BO & o

WEECEEmZBRRE  TEELE
Bt WEMBREME T -

DEEE

AEBRMBUEEEHER - HEEA
EEESTHEBASARNIZHRUDE
ERRAMERBEZER - FEED 2
BT HIMERT2HD B - WEEEDE
REEARATH2H|DE -

- EEBEBEREBHEEEZRMER
EORME -

2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(e)

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
group has presented the following two reportable
segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

—  The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.
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3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable
to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of

assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment
(loss)/profit is (loss)/profit from operations. Income

tax is not allocated to reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the group are not
reported to the group’s most senior executive
management regularly. As a result, reportable
segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in these financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)  Segment results (continued)
Information regarding the group’s reportable
segments as provided to the group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and assessment of segment

HzERSHEIMT : performance for the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 is set out below:
B2 BRSNS @zt
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
ZE-NE ZE-1F ZE-xE ZE-1%F ZE-RE ZE-1%
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
r T T T T T
$000 §/000 $000 §/000 $000 §/000
AREFUE Revenue from external customers 181,624 223,407 146372 196,558 327,996 419,965
A HENE Inter-segment revenue 20503 45114 39,278 50,690 68,781 95,804
ATEHI PN Reportable segment revenue 211,127 268521 185,650 247248 396777 515769
AF2HRAP (F8) /5H Reportable segment (loss)/profit (25222) 21972 (47,799)  (23,011)  (73,021) (1,039
RITEFZFERA Interest income from bank deposits 61 281 1,938 3,274 1,999 3,555
BENK Finance costs (158) (1) = - (158) (1)
ERiTE Depreciation for the year (10,255)  (10,727)  (10912)  (13,422)  (21,167)  (24,149)
n% BERRELZ Impairment losses on property, plant
REEE and equipment (1,776) - (5303 (5641) (7079 (5,641)
BEANEE Provision for onerous contracts (2,884) - (6905 (4645 (9,789)  (4,645)
EUES 2 (REFE) / (Impairment losses)/reversal of
BEGRRD impairment losses on trade debtors - - (517) 164 (517) 164
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WERDEHRE (&) 3.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) ZEEE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) BFE2HR7EWzmR (FE) ofl (i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue and
ZE R (loss)/profit
—E-RE —E—1F
2016 2015
T T
$/000 $7000
W = Revenue
RKEETFERDI W2 Total revenue from reportable segments
2y 25 396,777 515,769
7 2B FE U 2= ¥ 88 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (68,781) (95,804)
mEWE Consolidated revenue 327,996 419,965
(B8 HF (Loss)/profit
BETEHRDEEE Reportable segment loss (73,021) (1,039)
Hih ARz Other revenue and net gain/(loss)
(B#8) 58 10,713 7,681
Bl E R A Finance costs (158) (1
REME 2 HEWR Valuation gains on investment properties 14,420 11,432
BFEBALHRESEYZ  Valuation gains/(losses) on land and
HERE (FE) buildings held for own use 1,138 (1,750)
BB E NE 2 B8 Share of loss of associate 419) (188)
BiEEE DT Z Share of (loss)/profit of joint venture
(B8]), &R (4,087) 505
BREAISRE (BEB) & Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation (51,414) 16,640
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3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

TRHEIFBEODEAEEIRZTF W
i RINASEEREWSE W%
BERRZE BEXARGERNH
(EEHFRADEE]) 2HENVEE
BeorPztBMETIRERER
BRRNERZUBEBEE - EEF
RBEECHBENENREBEEEZ
BRAUE (MEREMEARDE
R 55 B 5R ) I A v i BE (fisf 12§ 10 Bt
ERRRAE QN 2ER) MEE -

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the group’s
investment properties, property, plant and
equipment, associate and joint venture
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods
were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of
investment properties and property, plant and
equipment, and the location of operations, in the

case of interests in associate and joint venture.

HREF W BEERBEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—E-Rf ZE-LF ZE-RF ZE-IF
2016 2015 2016 2015
Fr Fr Tr Tr
$000 $7000 $000 $000
&8 (M)  Hong Kong (place of domicile) 181,624 223,407 377,125 381,616
R K B Mainland China 60,125 89,668 154,902 133,651
aE Taiwan 34,993 43,436 782 640
! Macau 41,438 53,596 4,037 5,141
ESiIIE:d Singapore 9,816 9,858 795 1,993
146,372 196,558 160,516 141,425
327,996 419,965 537,641 523,041
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W ko EHE (&)
(b) DEFE (&)

(iv) BBEFEEFZEH
BE-_Z-R"ER-ZE-HF=A
Et—HLEFE BIEXRBE-—H
REPZUEEAEEREREZ
10%3R A ko

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iv) Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015, there was no single external customer that
contributed 10% or more of the group’s total

revenue.

HEmh ARWE (EE) B8E 4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET GAIN/(LOSS)
—E-AE —E-R¥F
2016 2015
Fr T
$’000 $'000
HA g A Other revenue
RITERZFEBWA Interest income from bank deposits 1,999 3,555
REMERSWALE Gross rental income from
investment properties 4,931 3,960
B 75 & U A Service fee income 951 954
Hith Others 1,042 412
8,923 8,881
Hipzs / (&518) B8 Other net gain/(loss)
HENE BERREZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
Wz (EE) 25 plant and equipment 122 (120)
X (BE) B8 Net exchange gain/(loss) 1,668 (1,080)
1,790 (1,200)
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BRBLAT (B51R) E A 5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRELAT (B518) s R E MR (GEA) ¢ (Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—E-RE “E-RF
2016 2015
Fr Tr
$000 $'000
(@ BMEMRE (@) Finance costs
RITERRBITBRZAE Interest on bank loans and
bank advances 158 1
(b)) BEIRAX(TEEES (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
& (KaE7)) emoluments (note 7))
REMFRINET B2 X Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan 7,163 7,939
$e& IERHMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 92,375 99,158
99,538 107,097
(co HfEAR (c) Other items
R < Auditors’ remuneration
- ZERE — audit services 2,054 1,998
— B R % — other services 202 218
e Depreciation 21,167 24,149
M- -BERRBZAEESR Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 7,079 5,641
W RS ZRERE, Impairment losses/(reversal of
CREEERRE) impairment losses) on
trade debtors 517 (164)
BRaNEE Provision for onerous contracts 9,789 4,645
THREEY 2 KE Operating lease charges in respect
HEER of land and buildings
-REHEENR — minimum lease payments 142,504 145,446
-SHEEE ~ contingent rentals 9,427 16,812
FERREMEHS MR Rentals receivable from investment
B 317,000t properties less direct outgoings
(ZE—FH%F :157,0007T) of $317,000 (2015: $157,000) (4,614) (3,803)
BFERAE (HaZ16(b) Cost of inventories * (note 16(b)) 73,387 70,422
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5.  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items (continued)

Cost of inventories includes $23,844,000 (2015:
$26,402,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately

above or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

(@ HEBEBRRFATRZHAEBA: (@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

—E-RF —ZT-HF
2016 2015
Fr T
$/000 $000
THBE-BFRRNEH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 998 3,082
BEFEBRBME Over-provision in respect of prior years (85) (145)
913 2,937
THBE-FREN Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
RNEERE Provision for the year 2,333 1,385
BEFEBEERE Over-provision in respect of prior years (280) (414)
2,053 971
EEFTEH Deferred tax
ERMEZRCEEREMD Origination and reversal of temporary
(Btat21(b)) differences (note 21(b)) 2,135 1,401
5,101 5,309
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REBBERMTZAEN (F)

(@)

RERBERMTZAERS : ()

R-ZE-—AR"E2HBBFEHBEDRIE
FRZMEAERFRRR (BT RBEEE
ATHEBRRFR _-_Z—H — <&
R FEECEAREZEZE/M75% (8
B R A20,0007T)) B16.5% (=%
—HBF 1 165%)FE - AEARLENE
(THE]) RBIHIKERR 2B E TR
EREREREBREACRITHRTE

Eizi_q REZA=ZT—HLEFEH

50 (UAPE - BERINEZHE AT
Ziﬁﬂ%m?’*ﬁui%%% (ZZE—EHF:
25%) ~17% (ZB—HF 1 17%) R17%
(ZZE—HF 1 17%) °
BRI R S 532,000 T (1HE
731,000 7t) {B1K 300,000/ 7T (48
E74291,0008 ) MERB WA RN F
3%B9%MBEREHM  MES A
REERE12%MHF - BE-ZT—RFR
—E-HFE=ZA=1+—ALEE  BMHK
RETHIEMAERBRER  KERBUK
AR BFEH32,0008BFF T (HER
31,0008 7T) #Z600,000582F9 5t (M= R
582,0005% 7t) » # H600,00038 P9 7t (18
B 74582,00058 7T) K FER B = A B 12 E
ERLE12%MB

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
reduction granted by Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2015/16 subject to
a maximum reduction of $20,000 for each business.
Taxation for the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) and overseas subsidiaries are charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the

relevant tax jurisdictions.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC, Taiwan
and Singapore are 25% (2015: 25%), 17% (2015:
17%) and 17% (2015: 17%) respectively.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income
above MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but
below MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and
thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended
31 March 2016 and 2015, a special complementary
tax incentive was provided to the effect that the tax
free income threshold was increased from MOP32,000
to MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000 to
HK$582,000) with profit above MOP600,000
(equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate
of 12%.
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REBBERMITZAEH ()

(@)

RERBERMRZMERS : ()

MIEEGARR  BRIAEEAFREEER
RABZHECEE_ZSZTLF+ZA
St-HAzBELEZEINEE 2D IRIE
10%BL RHMTBINF - BRAKTEBFE
ELEYHEBEIMRILIZMWBARE
BE2ERES  HETERBNBEERERAZ
MERS%  HRAEERELTRAFR
PIRZERF > FTAREBI EEL 5D K%
EREBFEN B ERIELEREE
&11,677,000m (Z & — H F
11,069,0007T) °

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $11,677,000 (2015: $11,069,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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SEEBRRITRZIAEBEH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) BEZHESH (HR) IBANREAB (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
RAHEZHER: (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:
—RE —
2016 2015
FTr T
$/000 $000
BME AT (B8] EA (Loss)/profit before taxation (51,414) 16,640

RENMBREREZREEES Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,

(&518) & F HE A calculated at the rates applicable to
BETTERBA (BB) (losses)/profits in the tax
Bz BERRE jurisdictions concerned (7,984) 1,565
TANBXH RS Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,101 3,139
BEGFHRBAZBESE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,313) (2,725)
AERRBEBEZHBEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,
HRAFECHHHE net of utilisation during the year 10,162 4,614
gﬁ;r’lﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂiﬂiﬁﬁé” Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax
BEERBE2HESZE arising from temporary differences = (98)
RBEFERBER BB Tax effect of recognition of deferred tax
BEMEERIEL arising from tax losses not recognised
REZBBEE in prior years - (627)
BEFECEIZBBEE Reversal of deferred tax arising from tax
FEEZELEHRERD losses recognised in prior years 500 -
BREFEBRERE Over-provision in respect of prior years (365) (559)
BREHEXH Actual tax expense 5,101 5,309
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DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

7. EEMHE 7.
RESBLAEAIEISHERAE (REE
ENEER) ROE—BREESHEOT of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

M
EER
BNEA Rk
Salaries, HE L
EZHE  allowances  EMETA  Retirement
Directors’  and henefits Discretionary scheme EH
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
r r i T i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $7000 $'000
ZB-RF 2016
HITEZE Executive directors
RAA Chan Yum Kit = 5,391 = 18 5,409
#I95E Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,079 = 18 4,097
HREE(R-2-1FNA Chui Hing Yee (passed away
TR ABHE) on 29 September 2015) = 2,067 = 9 2,076
2K Chan Sze Chun - 811 - 18 829
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive directors
EEY Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
LTS Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 = = = 60
Bl Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,348 - 63 12,591
Z2-5f 2015
HITEZE Executive directors
REA Chan Yum Kit - 6,877 - 18 6,895
#hITE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,106 - 18 4124
BER Chui Hing Yee - 2,523 70 18 2,611
REHL Chan Sze Chun - 942 60 18 1,020
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive directors
EEYS Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KBH Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
EHH Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 14,448 130 72 14,830
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7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,527,000 (2015: $2,775,000) which represents

the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.

8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five (2015: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, three (2015: four) are directors whose

emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the

ZENSBENT - emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: two)
individuals are as follows:

—E-RF —E-FE
2016 2015
T T
$7000 $'000
FERHEMEHNE Salaries and other emoluments 2,497 1,825
METEAL Discretionary bonuses 33 154
EIRET B Retirement scheme contributions 36 35
2,566 2,014

ZWMY(ZZE-—AF WU MEiS AL M

EETHEER :

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with the

A
Number of individuals
e —ZT-RF
2016 2015
Z 7T —1,000,0007T $Nil - $1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 2 1
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Hitb 2 H W 58
Htt2EBEEBO2HBLE

9. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

“E-XE —E-EHF
2016 2015
BR B AT BRBi% BRI AT BRE %
€8 BERX k] £¥ BERX Ea
Before Before
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense  amount amount  expense amount

TR Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

BEEREINNE LT

Exchange differences on

BEBRCERZR translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong (14,362) - (14,362) (1,395) - (1,395)
BRIBREEYZ Surplus on revaluation of
EffRER land and buildings held
for own use 18,573 (3,589) 14,984 30,437 (5,532) 24,905
HEfi2EWE Other comprehensive income 4,211 (3,589) 622 29,042 (5532) 23,510
gR (B1E) BA 10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
@ BREX(EHR) BF (@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

(b)

BREX(FE) BRADREAATDZ
BRESRRENEES6,515000T (ZF
—HF HER11,331,0000) RAFER
BTEBRMNEF T E287,930,0008
(ZZE—FH% :287,930,0008%) 575

SRBE (BB AF
HREBE-_E-AR-ZE-AF=A
ST -HLFENHEARETECER
ERTZER BRBE-Z-—RERZ
E-HF=ZA=+T-BLEEZERHE
H(EBE) BAESRER (BE) B
FAER o

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $56,515,000 (2015:
profit of $11,331,000) and the weighted average
number of 287,930,000 (2015: 287,930,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic
(loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015 as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015.
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11. YE -BERBREURKREWE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
(@) MREEH R (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount
Bl BE
B BKR
HAERRE
UA R ESIE kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
buildingg ~ I¥%E  andoffice ~ BENE
held for own R#&#  equipment &6 RENZ
use carried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Nt Investment st
atfairvalue  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
n i n n i n n
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
BAREE: Cost or valuation:
R-Z-MEMAB-R  At1Aprl 2014 381,164 5,382 23,056 51,060 460,662 63,263 523,925
EifE Exchange adjustments - - (37) (756) (793) - (793)
g Additions 23,669 - 1,696 20,858 46,223 - 46,223
HE Disposals - - (1,258) (9,611) (10,869) - (10,669)
L Surplus on revaluation 30,437 - - - 30437 - 30437
A BiEHE Less: Elimination of
accumulated depreciation (9,679) - - - (9,679) - (9,679)
MfEAZ Fair value adjustment (1,750) - - - (1,750) 11,43 9,682
HEgREENEBE  Transfer from land and buildings
RENE to investment properties (58,050) - - - (58,030) 58,050 -
HRENZFERZ Transfer from investment
THREEN properties to land and buildings 6,236 - - - 6,236 (6,236) -
R-2-1F At 31 March 2015
ZB=t-H 372,027 5,362 23,457 61,551 462,417 126,509 588,926
ik Representing:
BA Cost - 5,382 23457 61,551 90,390 - 90,390
fhE--2-1F Valuation - 2015 372,007 - - - 07 126509 498,336

372,027 5382 23,457 61,551 462,417 126,509 588,926




(@)

11. VL BERREURREWE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
B E Y (&) (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
B B
%8 EHR
e
HRAENR kRE
KEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
builings ~ I%%E  andofficc ~ BENE
held for own REH  equipment £ RENE
use carried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Mgt Investment st
atfair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total ~properties Total
tn fn tr fn tr tn tn
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
RZE-EEMA-A  At1Apil 2015 372,027 5382 23,457 61,551 462,417 126,509 588,926
EjE Exchange adjustments (3,019) (207) (231) (637) (4,094) - (4,094)
gE Additions = = 1,846 10,621 12,467 - 12,467
HE Disposals - (697) (1,159 (16,430) (18,286) - (18,286)
EfERR Surplus on revaluation 18,573 - - - 18,573 - 18,573
A BEHE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation (10,128) - - - (10,128) - (10,128)
MERE Fair value adjustment 1,138 - - - 1,138 14,420 15,558
MEIBRBENEE  Tranfer from land and buildings to
ERENE investment properties (5,486) - = = (5,486) 5,486 =
RZE-7E At31 March 2016
ZA=t-A 373,105 4478 23,913 55,105 456,601 146415 603,016
ik Representing:
BA Cost - 4478 23913 55,105 83,496 - 83,496
ffE-ZF-~F Valuation - 2016 373,105 - - - B0 46415 519520
373,105 4,478 23,913 55,105 456,601 146,415 603,016
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S 25 A B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

99



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #%1 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. Y& BERIEURREWE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(a) FREEHIERE) (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
B B
%8 EHR
HAELE
U R ESIE kRE
BEBRAZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,
Land and computer
buildings ~ IT¥%E  andoffice ~ HENE
held for own REH  equipment 3 REN%
use carried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Mt Investment st
atfair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total ~properties Total

r r r T r r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

i ERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

R-Z-MEMA-F  At1Aprl 2014 - 3,718 17,369 36,715 57,802 - 57,802
Ejg Exchange adjustments - - (12) (310) (322) - (322)
TEENE Charge for the year 9,679 47 2,064 11,989 24,149 - 24,149
REFE Impairment losses - - - 5,641 5,641 - 5,641
i EREE Written back on disposal - - (1,130 9,611 (10,741) - (10,741)
EftNHE Elimination on revaluation (9,679) - - - (9,679) - (9,679)
R-E-1f At 31 March 2015

ZR=t-H - 4135 18,291 44,424 66,850 - 66,850
RZZ-REMA-A  At1Apil 2015 = 4135 18,291 44,424 66,850 5 66,850
EXBZ Exchange adjustments = (155) (174) (256) (585) - (585)
REERE Charge for the year 10,128 217 1915 8,907 21,167 - 21,167
HEEE Impairment losses = = = 7,079 7,079 = 7,079
HERBE Witten back on disposal - (620) (1,115 (16422 (18,157) - (18,157)
EfiRHHE Elimination on revaluation (10,128) = = = (10,128) = (10,128)
RZE-AE At 31 March 2016

ZB=t-H = 3,577 18917 3,73 66,226 = 66,226
REFE: Net ook value:
RZE-RE At 31 March 2016

ZB=t-H 373,105 901 4,99 1373 390375 146,415 536,790
R-E-1f At 31 March 2015

ZH=t-A 372,007 1247 5,166 17127 395567 126509 522,076
R-ZE-—RE=ZA=+—H REEHA At 31 March 2016, land and buildings with carrying
22,500,000t (ZZ—HF &) 21Kk amounts of $22,500,000 (2015: Nil) were pledged
BEYCECHRBITEREAER (R against bank loans (see note 22).
22) o
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1. ¥ BERRBARRENE (&)

(b)y WEERE

RIB—RE BBEERBBENER
ETHReEEENHREEHE  BEREREY
¥ -BERRETELREHE Bt &
ECEHEBYE  BERRKEZTRE
ME MEBREEZREEESHRERS
Z AN [E R IE602,0007T ° B H 5 18
7,079,000t (ZE—HF : 5,641,0007T)
ERMEERDERARIANER - ATKE
NEDNREZSEENRB2RESESE
BUzEREAERBREIZS% (ZF

—FHF 1 13.5%) b5t e

(0 MEZAREFE
(i) RREEER

T

— E-RMAE: EERE-RE
BErENLQRE BREER
HEERHSUEREENA

BERERAENRE

— F-RMGE: EAE-RHE
AENARE BFAFEE—
FNTBEERBERRERAT
TEENERHE THEE
BEDEELINEHSERN

HiE

— B-HRME:ERTTEEN

EZHBEHENAR

TRENAEEMWERN R EHRER
KREMEEFAENAAME  XRR
ERMBHRELENE 135 [ALE
FEINEREDAZBARIAEBEER -
DNAEFESERIDSREERMA
ABENTEEEMEZME RN

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)

(o

Impairment losses

In 2016, certain cash-generating units of the Hong
Kong operation and Outside Hong Kong operation
recorded losses which indicate the related property,
plant and equipment might have been impaired. As a
result, the directors reviewed the recoverable amount
of the relevant property, plant and equipment and the
carrying amount of such assets was written down to
their recoverable amount of $602,000. An impairment
loss of $7,079,000 (2015: $5,641,000) was recognised
in “selling and distribution costs”. The estimates of
recoverable amount were based on value in use of the
cash-generating units to which these assets belong at a
discount rate of 13.5% (2015: 13.5%).

Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(0 MEZAREFE(H) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) RALEBZER(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
R-B—XE B-ZE—XR"FE=ZH=+—H
=A=+—8H ZAREFEDES
ZARE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value as at 31 March 2016 categorised into
31 March F—& E-® E=M
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T FT T Fx
$000 $7000 $7000 $000
BEMRA Recurring fair value
Eif £ measurement
REWE : Investment properties:
&8 - Hong Kong 62,831 = = 62,831
— HEl A it ~ Mainland China 83,584 - - 83,584
FEER L Land and buildings held
REEY : for own use:
—-&5B - Hong Kong 305,068 = - 305,068
— HEl A it — Mainland China 68,037 - - 68,037
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11. V¥ -BERBREURREVE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(0 MEZAAREFTE(H) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) RATEZFHRGE (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
R-—B-1F BR-Z2-RFZA=t-H
=A=+—H ZAREFEDER
ZAARE Fair value measurements as at
Fair value as at 31 March 2015 categorised into
31 March F—& E-R E=&
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

T Tt T Fx
$000 $7000 $7000 $000
BEMRIL Recurring fair value
BiE measurement
REWE Investment properties:
&% - Hong Kong 63,104 - - 63,104
— HEl At — Mainland China 63,405 - - 63,405
FEERZLH Land and buildings held
REZEY for own use:

—-&iE - Hong Kong 306,926 - - 306,926
—RE R — Mainland China 65,101 - - 65,101
HE-E—XE=ZB=+—HIE During the year ended 31 March 2016, there
E EF—REREFE_HFzBLEE were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
B TREE=ZFNBAREL (= transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). The
T-HFE) AEEBRBER group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
EMABERBOABERERZBER levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

EZERE-

reporting period in which they occur.
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&

(c) MEZAREE(E)

)

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

()

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) AABEEZF(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
AEBEFEREYEREBEERY All of the group’s investment properties and land
tHREEYR -_E—<E=H and buildings held for own use were revalued as
=+ - HEEHFHE HEIEH at 31 March 2016. The valuations were carried
BIYAEMTREHEE T ERM out by an independent firm of surveyors, Vigers
BRABET ZRAEMITZET Appraisal and Consulting Limited, who have
ZHEERNBMBEEES A among their staff members of the Hong Kong
MOEEERSERMEENRE Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
TR =3 RA BB 9 3% - AR E the location and category of property being
ZBERTUEZARGFNER valued. The group’s most senior executive
EHARETEHERREERRRMA . .

(B84 52 B TS5 2 o manageme‘nt has dlscu?smn with the su.rveyors on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each end of
the reporting period annually.

(i) BEZ=MAREHEZEHN (i) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements
op 1
e BARE mEFHS
Valuation Unobservable #E  Weighted
techniques inputs Range average

REBCRENE-IX ERUEE ﬁE%%ﬁi -40% - 88% -15%

Investment properties in Direct  fFiliz (&) /

Hong Kong - Industrial comparison g
approach (Discount)/
premium on
quality of
the buildings

RAEIR ZRENF-TX EREEE  GERENEE -12% - -6% -9%
Investment properties in Direct friti 2 i
Mainland China - Industrial comparison Discount on
approach quality of
the buildings
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1. ¥ BERRBARRENE (&)

(o)

MEZDIRETE (F)
(i) BEE=ZRIESEZEH (F)

PROPERTIES (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements (continued)

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

FTIBR

fhENE BAHE MEFH

Valuation Unobservable #E  Weighted

techniques inputs Range average

ReEREZRENF-EE EREEE  HRENEE 31% - -8% -25%
Investment properties in Direct frtzihE
Mainland China - Residential comparison Discount on
approach quality of
the buildings

REBRFERZIBREEN-TX EREEE FEENEE -36% - 13% -5%
Land and buildings held for Direct  ffitiz (#1#) /
own use in Hong Kong - Industrial comparison =B
approach (Discount)/
premium on
quality of
the buildings

RERBFERZTBRBEN % EEHEE  HRENES -27% - 5% -13%
Land and buildings held for Direct  fEHZ (#3)/
own use in Hong Kong - Residential comparison BE
approach (Discount)/
premium on
quality of
the buildings

RAERE ARz L RBEN-TX EERLBE RRENEE 4% - -2% 3%
Land and buildings held for Direct 3P
own use in Mainland China - Industrial comparison Discount on
approach quality of
the buildings

RAEREFEERZ T RREN-H% EREEE  RRENEE -31% - 0% -5%
Land and buildings held for Direct friti 2 T2
own use in Mainland China - Residential comparison Discount on
approach quality of
the buildings
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1. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&)

(c)

MEZRAREE ()
(i) BEE=ZRIESEZEH (F)

UREBRPENBBEERZR
BEMFEURLIHREEY 2 DIRE
D2ERBHENELRNEESR
B Z2oRmSEEEEERE -

EREERELEBENEERBERF
BB EREYEIMTBEENL
R-BEVEZERS  EETER
B BERQIAREFELA -

0

R BEEZAAAEH RS
ZEBMT :

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

()

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)

The fair value of investment properties and land
and buildings held for own use located in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China is determined on
an open market value basis, by making reference
to the comparable sales evidence in the relevant

locality.

The premium or discount used in direct
comparison approach is specific to the building
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality buildings will result in a high fair

value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as

follows:



(o)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B 4 [ # iR 2 %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

S 25 A B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11. NE - BERZEURKREYE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
MEZDARETE (F) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=ZRLIAALETEZEH (E) (i) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)
—B-AF ZE-IF
2016 2015
FTr Fr
$/000 $000
REME-FB Investment properties — Hong Kong:
BB —H At 1 April 63,104 63,263
BRESE Transfer to land and buildings
HRAZTHREZEY held for own use = (6,236)
AREFHE Fair value adjustment (273) 6,077
R=ZR=+—H At 31 March 62,831 63,104
REVE-FERML: Investment properties — Mainland China:
ROA—H At 1 April 63,405 -
BEAFEARALIMR  Transfer from land and buildings
BEY held for own use 5,486 58,050
NREAR Fair value adjustment 14,693 5,355
R=A=+—H At 31 March 83,584 63,405
BEBAZLIHRESEY Land and buildings held for
-5 own use — Hong Kong:
BB —AH At 1 April 306,926 261,607
FREBE Addition during the year - 23,669
BREREDE Transfer from investment properties - 6,236
REERE Depreciation charge for the year (8,333) (7,278)
NRERHE Fair value adjustment 1,138 (1,750)
ERRER Surplus on revaluation 5,337 24,442
R=ZB=+—H At 31 March 305,068 306,926
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1. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&)

(c)

MEZRAREE ()
(i) BEE=ZRIESEZEH (F)

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements (continued)

—B-AF —E-1F
2016 2015
FTr Fr
$/000 $000

BFEEBRAZLHRESEY Land and buildings held for

—HER: own use — Mainland China:

RO A—H At T April 65,101 119,557
BREREDX Transfer to investment properties (5,486) (58,050)
E 5 AR Exchange adjustments (3,019) -
REEINE Depreciation charge for the year (1,795) (2,401)
BB Surplus on revaluation 13,236 5,995
R=B=+—H At 31 March 68,037 65,101

REVMENDIAERBRRGEER
RIREVME 2 hEWE ] BETHER
N

B AB18,573,000t (ZFE— 4
% :30,437,0007T) REM 2 AN
It REEVELFEHEIANE
ReofMLbiizHEEEAZLRE
FMBREARBTESIE R
EZ-RFE=ZRA=+—HZEHEEH
%93,963,000T (=& —HF :
97,541,0007T) °

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Valuation gains on
investment properties” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of $18,573,000 (2015:
$30,437,000) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “land and buildings
revaluation reserve”. Had the above land and
buildings held for own use been carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been $93,963,000 (2015:
$97,541,000) at 31 March 2016.
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11. V¥ -BERBREURREVE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

(d)

PROPERTIES (continued)

MEZREFEINMOT : (d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
—B-AF —
2016 2015
Fr T
$000 $'000
REB In Hong Kong
-REPEE — Long leases 173,079 166,910
—FHHEE - Medium-term leases 188,480 196,620
-EHHE — Short leases 6,340 6,500
BBIRI Outside Hong Kong
-REEE ~ Long leases 22,569 16,709
—FHHEE - Medium-term leases 129,052 111,797
519,520 498,536
Rk : Representing:
LA RESREER A Land and buildings held for own use
2L REEY carried at fair value 373,105 372,027
REWE Investment properties 146,415 126,509
519,520 498,536

109



110

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #%1 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&) 11.

(e) REKEHEHHEZEE
FERBREHERAYTARENE
EREZNERBERREME -

AEBREEHERRREYE - LEHE
E-RAOLHBB-—FE2=F  ATROW
REFBRMBGIEE - HEMRER
EERFHE  URRTEES  FEL
EHEYFEEREHRE -

REBZFAIHEENEEHEEHRE
W REAENRBENT ¢

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(e)

Assets leased out under operating leases
All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

The group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

The group’s total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:
—EB-KF —ZT-RF
2016 2015
T T
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 5,090 4,280
—FE#ERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 917 4,250
6,007 8,530
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12. RB AR ZER 12.
TRAFTEZEREEEE BEEREBZH
BARZFHE KRB ETHIN AIFEZRNG
BHAERR -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

RERRILA
BRIRARE Proportion of ownership interest
B/ &R ARE
AL By ERER
REEHH Particulars The ARF  WELF
Place of of issued and group’s kA L]

ALEL incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective ~ Held bythe  Held bya IERK
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABEAREE 2,000R8REEIX T 100% 100% - REZR
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Always Profit Holdings ZBERREE IREEIET 100% - 100% REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of USS$1 Investment holding
EEERLT BE 500,008 & 100% - 100%  FEHHRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
BEBAHRERLT & ELERZRE 100% - 100%  WRREROERE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 & 4 Sourcing of materials
EER1,800,001RRH and property holding

Deferred non-voting

200,000 shares

Ordinary 1,800,001 shares
BHREARLT B 2BRH 100% - 100% RERR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
B2 (FR)ARLT B SRR 100% - 00%  BHBHRESES
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Trading of fashion apparel

and accessories

111



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

12. RMIB AR 2= ()

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

RERELA
BEARAR Proportion of ownership interest
R& /R A5E
UL Erewf  RRER
REEnE Particulars The A27  WELF
Place of of issued and group’s 2] 2]

NEER incorporation fully paid-up share/ effective  Heldbythe ~ Held bya IEER
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
TEARERAT B 2BRH 100% - 100% REZR
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
REREERAT BE 1,000% 8 4 100% - 100% RERR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Investment holding
Euro Legend Assets Limited ARERRES IREEIZR 100% - 100% REER
British Virgin Islands 1 share of USS1 Investment holding

AieARAT BE 100 100% - 100% REER
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
tRERERLR BB 300,008 B 4 100% - 100%  FERHRHRES
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories

LERERERLE B 2BRH 100% - 100% REER
iMaroon International Company Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BERERRAR BE 10,000% R 100% - 100% ESSE
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
B (BR)ERAT B 1,000,000 3 100% - 100%  FERHRGRES
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel

and accessories
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BHERLA
BEARAR Proportion of ownership interest
BA /R A5%E
A Erxewf  RRER
REERH Particulars The A27  WELT
Place of of issued and group’s 2] 2]
RAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ ~effective ~ Held by the ~ Held by a IEXR
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
FREBERAA 2 R B 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. R 500,000 8 REE 100% - 100% TERERGRES
Singapore 15 T Retail of fashion apparel
500,000 shares of and accessories
SG$1 each
ZEARLT ABERREE IREEIZR 100% - 100% RERHRAREH
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
ERRERRLA B 500,000 B 3 100% - 100%  FERHRGRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
REARERLT B 500,000 8 4 100% - 100%  BERHRHRES
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories
BEERAF EBERRES IRABIXR 100% - 100% REZR
Profair Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
HEREARAT BB BB 100% - 100%  EERHBHRES
Regal Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Retail of fashion apparel

and accessories
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12. AMB AT 2% (&) 12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BERERLA
BRIRAE Proportion of ownership interest
R/ 2 i3 |
A ERei#t ERESR
REEHY Particulars The A8 KWEAR
Place of of issued and group’s B8 BE

NREHR incorporation fully paid-up share/ effectie ~ Held by the ~ Held bya TEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
BEREARAA £ 1,000 K4 100% - 100% NERE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EEREFRAA ik 4RR G 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
BHERLR ARERRES 10,000k 8 REE1 X7 100% - 100% REER
Sosuccess Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
REEBERAA ABUWREE \REEIZR 100% - 100% REER
Timepro International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment holding
ERREARAA AP M ER25,0008P 7T 100% - 100% ZEREREGRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau Registered capital Retail of fashion apparel
MOP25,000 and accessories

RHREERAA B WRRAB 100% - 100% ZERHRAREH
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Retail of fashion apparel
and accessories

REENRAA £ 500,008 1 % 100% - 100% RERHRESHE S
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Trading of fashion apparel

and accessories
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

REERILA
BRARMRE Proportion of ownership interest
BA /R A5E
EaugoA Brewts  ERER
REERE Particulars The A27  WELT
Place of of issued and group’s ] KA
RAER incorporation fully paid-up share/ ~effective ~ Held by the ~ Held by a IEXR
Name of company and operation registered capital interest company  subsidiary Principal activity
ERRRRIERAR * R 2,100,007 100% - 100% REMK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC $2,100,000 Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Company Limited * garments
HEBEFINERAR * H 8,400,000 100% - 100% HERTK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) The PRC $8,400,000 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. * garments
A EEBENRERAT hE AR#500,0007T 100% - 100%  HEBHRERES
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion Wholesale The PRC RMB500,000 Wholesale of fashion
Co., Ltd. * apparel and accessories
REXBETERRAT il AB2,000,0007T 100% - 100% ZERMBREH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC RMB2,000,000 RERES

Limited Company *

* REPEEMEMZNBBRELE -

* These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises registered under

the laws of the PRC.

Retail and wholesale of

fashion apparel and

accessories

115



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #%1 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. REE AR 2 s 13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
S A
2016 2015
5 it
$’000 $7000
FE UL B & N B FRE Amount due from an associate 1,705 1,400
EtaEFHE Share of net liabilities (854) (435)
851 965
AEBRBEATZERFRNOT : Details of the group’s interest in the associate are as
follows:
BEERLA

Proportion of

ownership interest

BRAR A5E
EMRLE BRRAFE BRER
% BEny Particulars The  HEAR
RERA Place of of issued group’s 2]
BELTER Form of business incorporation and paid up effective ~ Held by a IERE
Name of associate structure and operation capital interest  subsidiary Principal activity
A Hidden Lab Limited LA BE BB 50% 50% FER RS
Incorporated Hong Kong 2 shares REH
Retail of
fashion apparel
and accessories
REEBMREBEREI IR ZA Hidden A Hidden Lab Limited accounted for using the equity
Lab LimitedJ33E £ AR - HIL T 5 ME o method in the consolidated financial statements is an

unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not
available.
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13. REAE AR 2% (&) 13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
BERARZHBERYE : Summary of financial information on the associate:
EEFE
BE =K Net I & B
Assets Liabilities liabilities Revenue Loss
Fr Fr F Fx Fr
$'000 $"000 $000 $'000 $'000
—E-RE 2016
100%¥E &2 100 per cent 1,752 (3,460) (1,708) 46 (837)
rEEZER The group’s effective
s interest 876 (1,730) (854) 23 (419)
—E-AEF 2015
100%#E % 100 per cent 1,929 (2,800) (871) 22 (377)
AEEZER The group’s effective
& interest 965 (1,400) (435) 11 (188)
14. REERAIZER 14. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—E-RE —E-1F
2016 2015
F F
$000 $'000
FEWE & D RIFHIEA Amount due from a joint venture 4,942 855
EiEEEFE Share of net liabilities (4,942) (855)
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14. REEDT R (& 14. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
TEERGE QAR ZRER (UESERGRE Y Details of the group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
BHRERFR) FBEOT ¢ accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

HRERLA
Proportion of

ownership interest

BRATR LS|

% ALK BERAHE  ERER
RER Rewy Particulars The HEAR

Form of Place of of issued group’s BE TEEHB

RENTER business incorporation and paid up effective ~ Held by a Principal

Name of joint venture structure and operation capital interest  subsidiary activity

Sequoia HK, Limited A BB 1008 B 13 50% 50% ZERY

Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares R & I B

Retail of

fashion apparel

and accessories
REEWE—28H 245 % A FSequoia HK, Sequoia HK, Limited, the only joint venture in which the
LimitedJ33k ETH AR - HIEHIHHRE o group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose

quoted market price is not available.
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(LA %71 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summary of financial information on the joint venture

- the group’s effective interest:

—E-RE —E-FHEF

2016 2015

Fr Fr

$’000 $/000

FREEE Non-current assets 335 53
REBEE Current assets 1,001 248

REBER Current liabilities (6,278) (1,156)
BEFE Net liabilities (4,942) (855)
WA Income 6,544 2,151

X Expenses (10,631) (1,646)
Fw(E8),&F (Loss)/profit for the year (4,087) 505

HitEE 15. OTHER ASSETS

HtEEEEE 2

\?&ﬁ,ﬁ_]/

AR E AR — FREE

Hitizsd - EH

Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits

which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

end of the reporting period.
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16. FE 16. INVENTORIES
(@) REEHBERRRZEERRE (@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

—E—K —E-—HE

2016 2015

i Fi

$/000 $/000

JE w1 # Raw materials 3,937 3,638

EHm Work in progress 801 1,425

BLE m Finished goods 52,962 65,416

57,700 70,479
(b) BRABAIAFABHEZFESEZD (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
war as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

follows:

—®-x%  —%-nf

2016 2015

FTr Fr

$/000 $000

EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 74,370 66,551

(BEM) MEFE (Reversal of write-down)/write-down

of inventories (983) 3,871

73,387 70,422
BROBIFEMEFEDAREFER The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior
WSS ETEERE 2GS EEE years arose due to an increase in the estimated net
0 o realisable value of certain off-season clothing as a result of

change in consumer preferences.
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17. BEWRRFR I H fth FE W 3K 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E-RF —ZT-HF
2016 2015
F5 Fi
$/000 $000
FE U BR 3K Trade debtors 11,897 13,237
W BRWER R Z B EEE Less: impairment losses on trade debtors (517) -
11,380 13,237
BE - ANRER Deposits, prepayments and
HL th & U FR other receivables 26,148 37,912
37,528 51,149
FrEREWERR R EMERRTES SN —FERk All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
EREZEEY - recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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17. BRRARA R H B WK (F) 17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@ FREDH (@) Ageing analysis
REBEHR - RBFHYFE ZBURERR As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
(Bt ABUIRR R KA B KRR - 304 analysis of trade debtors (which are included in trade

BREEW IR ZBERE) ZBRE DT

and other receivables and net of impairment losses on

trade debtors), based on invoice date, is as follows:

—E-KF —
2016 2015
FTr T
$’000 $'000
308 A Within 30 days 9,508 11,646
31H£90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,606 1,521
91EZ180H Between 91 to 180 days 157 56
181HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days 109 14
11,380 13,237
FEWERFAEERHRET30E90R 3 Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
H o REBMEERK 2E - TR BENH date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit
#F25() ° policy are set out in note 25(a).
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17. BUYWARFR R E UK (&)

(b)

EWiRR 2 HEEE

FE W BRR 2 BB RS 1R LA B AR RS 8% - A
REBERHWEHREEE 2 TREMERE
AREBESEERERRTAME (R
MEEET()(0) e

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

FAZRBERESDHIOT ¢ The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year are as follows:

—B-AF ZE-IF

2016 2015

FTr Fr

$/000 $000

ROA—AH At 1 April = 164
ERAREEE Impairment losses recognised 517 -

FWERR 2 RESERD Reversal of impairment losses

on trade debtors - (164)

W=ZB=+-—8 At 31 March 517 -

R-ZZE—ARE=ZB=+—-8  EWER
517,000t (ZZ2—FF : Bx) R EE
BBEREERERE - EREEARMEZ
FEWFEEEE SRS EAHE M
REBETM > BT EZSERRET
FUE - @it REBED R RIR517,000
T(ZE—HF  Tx)BRISHIEE -

At 31 March 2016, trade debtors of $517,000 (2015:
$Nil) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that none of these receivables is
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of $517,000 (2015:

$Nil) were recognised.
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17. BUWRRFR R E UK (47

(c)

3 45 3718 2 FE W AR R
3 4 18 Y 25 2k 5] #4823 B 18 2 FE W AR X
ZERE DT :

17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

—E-RE —E-hF

2016 2015

Fr T

$’000 $'000

I 2 38 B SR B Neither past due nor impaired 10,264 11,829
BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 633 1,168
BEA31H £90H 31 to 90 days past due 217 226
#EI91HZ180A 91 to 180 days past due 157 14
BE180A B L Over 180 days past due 109 -
1,116 1,408

11,380 13,237

3 48 380 A SR 1B 2 FE WU 8 I T R
WEEBNTCHEZEREF -

CEMERRBEZEBERTIE - #HLER
SEERFRGTHZBIEFER - H
REEEZU BB ARG RERDAK
BRUNUZZWE - RIBBELER  BE
BRELEL R ZE S ERE R ER
B AEEN BN ZSERITHEMER

O
Aan °

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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18. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

—B-AF ZE-IF
2016 2015
Fr Fr
$/000 $7000
FHRAEB=EAREHZ Deposits with banks within three months
RITHF to maturity when placed 83,125 123,057
RITERREAS Cash at bank and in hand 55,858 60,835
RERE BT R Z Cash and bank deposits in the
RERBITHERAR consolidated statement of financial
REERERERZ position and cash and cash
RERBREEEY equivalents in the consolidated
cash flow statement 138,983 183,892
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18. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

BRBIAT (B518) RRELEEE (FA) (b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash

FEAZREZHER:

(used in)/generated from operations:

—RE “2-0F

2016 2015

[ Tr Tr

Note $/000 $'000

BREAT (B5E) /EA (Loss)/profit before taxation (51,414) 16,640

BT HEMRE Adjustments for:
REME2MEE Valuation gains on investment
I & properties 11 (14,420) (11,432)
BEERZLH Valuation (gains)/losses on land
REEN2ftE and buildings held for own use
(k&) /B8 11 (1,138) 1,750
e Depreciation 5(c) 21,167 24,149
¥ BERRE Impairment losses on property,
ZHEFE plant and equipment 5(c) 7,079 5,641
BYEER 2 REER,/ Impairment losses/(reversal of
(BERERSE) impairment losses) on trade debtors 5(c) 517 (164)
MERK Finance costs 5(a) 158 1
FISWA Interest income 4 (1,999) (3,555)
ﬁim¥ B = RERE Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
2 (W) /E8RE plant and equipment 4 (122) 120
FEE 5?%"372@5{5 Share of loss of associate 419 188
Eihagns Share of loss/(profit) of joint venture
B/ (/mﬂ) 4,087 (505)
ER(kz) /BB Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (2,280) 2,045
EEESRY: Changes in working capital:
Eﬁﬂﬁ? (1) /EHD (Increase)/decrease in other assets (4,821) 2,679
wW/( im7Jl] Decrease/(increase) in inventories 11,051 (13,699)
FE”H?“ ARFRIBEM Increase in amount due from
an associate (305) (100)
EWEE ARRE (Increase)/decrease in amount due
(imﬂﬂ)/ﬁid\ from a joint venture (4,087) 505
FEWE‘E R R E A FE Decrease/(increase) in trade and
WD,/ () other receivables 11,480 (2,096)
F’EﬁEE KR A Decrease in trade and other payables
FHED (5,693) (3,689)
BEEm Increase in provisions 7,504 4,645
REER (A / Cash (used in)/generated from operations
FEEZES (22,817) 23,123
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19. B RRA R H At B4R 19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—EB-ARE “E-hF
2016 2015
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
FE A3 BR X Trade payables 5,512 6,050
Htt BN HERETER Other creditors and accrued charges 42,948 48,692
48,460 54,742
AR ERMNRAREMENRIGER —FR All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
BE - settled within one year.
RBEEHR REZAHFAEZBAIERER (B As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
STABMARR R HMEMARR) 28Rk 2470 trade creditors (which are included in trade and other
T payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—B-RF —E-h¥F
2016 2015
Fr T
$’000 $'000
30BA Within 30 days 1,328 1,412
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 3,155 3,843
#iB90H Over 90 days 1,029 795
5,512 6,050
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20. BEERKEF

(a)

AEBEREEBGAFIEDBSTTEURA)
HREB(EBRA) EBREBREAZ
EEHTRHEABSHE (BES
gl BESHELAHBUZITAEE
ZREMFBRNETE - RIFBBESEE
BEREESERESEHAIRAZ5%M
ZiTEER BEEABBERALRA
30,0007t (ZZE—MWE XA ZA£A25,000
) o BERITEZHRDANEEREE -

TEZHBLARCSHAM S BFERE
ZREMKEE - KEMBLRARPE
BERBH T 2B THEELREZTE
B SR -

REBEEXB - HWBARAZEECE
E2HEAEL TRASKRAEE 2R
EHFAETE - LB ARARSEREM
HEt B2 BERAFERE Z6%HER
FRHRERREELE IRER ZMEA
RIKERSA -

20. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest

immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act of
Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of the participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, the contribution deposited into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance of

Taiwan.
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20. BERKER (&)

(d)

TRHT IR B /BB A B oz & T 2 B2 FR 3 03
BFAS P RABEEHE (HROE
) WBLARAREIZFEZEFMH
ETEDLATRABEEMA - RIBEHR
DEEHRG > ERREAZHEEHAR
BmERA - MEAREARNRE  HEER
AXNBRARERZEBNILEE-PHE
ERE -

BREmEN  AEBAUBEMARESE
KBANRZEMEREE -

REARGFEZ2HARELFTHARS

o

>+

20. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(d)

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. This
subsidiary and its employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or

postretirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) ZEUBMRRRFARZABHREBERLRE ! (@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

—E-RE —E-RF
2016 2015
T Fr
$’000 $'000

REEFBFED Provision for Hong Kong Profits
B1E Tax for the year 998 3,082
ENEHFEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (2,649) (6,949)
(1,651) (3,867)

BREFEMSHBHERLR Balance of Profits Tax provision
relating to prior years (12) -
(1,663) (3,867)
BBBEIIHIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 1,261 395
(402) (3,472)

K& Representing:

A ERE Tax recoverable (1,688) (4,230)
BABE Tax payable 1,286 758
(402) (3,472)
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21. BABMBRREFIEZFFES (&) 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

b)) CERIAELEFEHREERARS: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
RAEAFEEGEMBRARERIZEL The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
FEREaRE (BE) 2ARBoREEH recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
SEOT position and the movements during the year are as

follows:
HESNER
TEAHE
Depreciation AR5 HEERZ
in excess of FERER  HEEE ARAE
therelated ~ EfEM%  Unrealised Write- Future
depreciation ~ Revaluation profits on downof  benefit of BE
allowances of properties inventories inventories tax losses Total
T T r r r r
$000 $000 $000 §'000 $000 $000
RZE-MEMA-A At 1 April 2014 (4,815) 67,189 (2,495) (5,320) - 54,559
BREAPGIA)/MK  (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (548) 1,050 (60) 1,586 (627) 1,401
REPIR Charged to reserves - 5,532 - - - 5,532
RZE-RE=A=+-H At31 March 2015 (5,363) 73,771 (2,555) (3,734) (627) 61,492
RZE-1EMA-A At 1 April 2015 (5,363) 73,771 (2,555) (3,734) (627) 61,492
BRRBGIA) /MR (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (450) 3,861 (401) 292 (1,167) 2,135
RERMR Charged to reserves - 3,589 = = = 3,589
RZE-REZBZ+-H At31 March 2016 (5,813) 81,221 (2,956) (3,442) (1,794) 67,216

131



132

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #%1 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21. BABBRREF R AR (#) 21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
by CEIAELEMBHEEREE : (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

—E-XRE —E-RF

2016 2015

T Tt

$’000 $000

RERE IR R RIEZ ZIEL  Net deferred tax asset recognised in the

FEBEEFH consolidated statement of
financial position (6,187) (8,375)
RERE BT REZZIEL  Net deferred tax liability recognised in
R aEFR the consolidated statement of
financial position 73,403 69,867
67,216 61,492
(0 REIELFREBREE: (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
RIEFRME1(p) 2 E5TBER - REBML In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
B THEEEEZERIEERERSE note 1(p), the group has not recognised deferred tax
B assets in respect of the following temporary
differences:
= ZE-EF
2016 2015
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
RBEE Tax losses 127,253 76,474
WEZNEE Depreciation in excess of the related
TERBE depreciation allowances and
KM% BERRE impairment losses on property,
ZHERE plant and equipment 5,970 5,937
EBiEENRE Provision for onerous contracts 12,149 4,645
145,372 87,056
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SEUBRRRARZAEH (&

(0 REAELMEHEE: (F)
KERBEEEATEELEBBFER
ZEEZHFRFERZFIES4,336,0007T

—ZE—F45:38,209,000T) - THES
BEFEEZERZTFERERZHIE
1,565,0007c (ZZE—FHF : 892,0007t)
RUBELEFETFERZEESZ=FR
B 2% 1E1,316,0000¢ (ZE—HF :
w|)  c RIBEBBRBEB KRG 8-
70,036,000t (=& —HF : 37,373,000
TU) MR o

FEARTER
REZZB-RE=ZR=+—H FERTERE

21. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(o)

Deferred tax assets not recognised: (continued)

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$54,336,000 (2015: $38,209,000) which can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which
the loss was incurred, an amount of $1,565,000
(2015: $892,000) which can be carried forward up to
ten years from the year in which the loss was incurred
and an amount of $1,316,000 (2015: Nil) which can
be carried forward up to three years from the year in
which the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
$70,036,000 (2015: $37,373,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

22. SECURED BANK LOANS
At 31 March 2016, all the bank loans were repayable as

THHERERE : follows:
—E-RF —ZT-HF
2016 2015
Fr T
$/000 $000
—FRIBEECEHERLH Portion of term loans due for repayment
within one year 581 -
—FRIBEECEHER Term loans due for repayment
(Bat1) after one year (note 1)
—FREWFR After 1 year but within 2 years 581 -
MEZRBREER After 2 years but within 5 years 1,744 -
EF# After 5 years 5,330 -
7,655 -
8,236 -
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22. BEFRITER(HF

23.

BraEr : BNREDREBEERBEAAFETER
BHIfEE  WESTAEFREREE
RRZEE -

RIE-RE=ZF=1+—80 ' AEEZRTE
AT5LLBRE #2{822,500,000c (=B —HF :
B 2T REEYZAEERTRAATR
Bz AFIERELER -

BHEARTEREFTESE TEAQATAMB LT
2R R E B 2 R Ty IS EAERT
VERZHEZERRE WEEEREHR
o AEREREEEEARTER - A&£H
EHERRGETZELH2ER - BEEHE
RBHEcEREE K -SHFBENKE
25(b) e RAZE—RE=ZRA=+—0H  BEER

22.

SECURED BANK LOANS (continued)

Note 1: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
of any repayment on demand clause.

At 31 March 2016, the bank loans of the group were
secured by legal charges over land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of $22,500,000 (2015: $Nil) and
corporate guarantee provided by the company.

The secured bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain statement of financial position
ratios of the company’s subsidiaries, as are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the group were to breach the covenants the secured bank
loans would become payable on demand. The group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants.

BEEEMRITERCRZE (ZE—FF &) - Further details of the group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 25(b). As at 31 March 2016, none of the
covenants relating to the secured bank loans had been
breached (2015: Nil).

BE 23. PROVISIONS

BRAEHRE Provision for onerous contracts

—B-REF
2016

Fr

$/000

REA—A At 1 April 4,645

BN Additional provisions made 9,789

EEIREE: L Provision utilised (2,285)

R=B=+—~8 At 31 March 12,149

REBREBEBREBRMNER 25 TIEH
ZERHEESNFELERE REZSEN B
THREEZTIRERABBZRE/EHET
HEEMB TEEZLBRE - Bt » H1BE
HBECRHEER D HERADER -

The provision was made for onerous lease contracts for
certain stores of the Hong Kong operation and Outside
Hong Kong operation. Under these contracts, the
unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations have exceeded
the economic benefits expected to be derived from sales
generated by these stores. Consequently, a provision for
onerous contracts was recognised in selling and distribution
costs.
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BEBN 228 (@)
FEEREEESHORFARFES
BReHRANGEREZSBXR - AOAE
BEBORFIORFRE2EZDFER

RTX e

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below.

The company

Bx  ERtoEE RARR  RERN ARR#ER

Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
Tr Tr r Tr r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-B-MEMA—-AZ&H  Balance at 1 April 2014 2,880 65,327 61,572 172,323 302,102
ZB-ME/-BEZEZEEH : Changes in equity in 2014/15:
ER2EUEAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 32,817 32,817
EZECHEZRE Dividend approved in respect of
(HiEt24b)ii) the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (23,035) (23,035)
REEEERZKE Dividend declared in respect of
(Hit240)0)) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (11,517) (11,517)
R=B-1% Balance at 31 March 2015
ZA=t-Hz&H% 2,880 65,327 61,572 170,588 300,367
R=Z2-EFMA—-AZ&H  Balance at 1 April 2015 2,880 65,327 61,572 170,588 300,367
ZE-RF/-REZBZBE  Changes in equity in 2015/16:
ER2ENRLE Total comprehensive income for the year - = = 10,982 10,982
LEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect of
(HEE240b)i7) the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) - - - (11,517) (11,517)
AEEEERZKE Dividend declared in respect of
(Brat24b)i) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (2,879) (2,879)
R=B-R% Balance at 31 March 2016
ZA=t-RzER 2,880 65,327 61,572 167,174 296,953
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24, BEXR - ERRE () 24.

b B2
(i) BNEREEZRRZAFERE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E-RF —Z2-h%
2016 2015
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
EERRKMAFEBRE  Interim dividend declared and paid
BREBER L of 1 cent per ordinary share
(Z2—HRF: (2015: 4 cents per ordinary share) 2,879 11,517
BRI B R4L)
RS REEZE D IRKHEFinal dividend proposed after the end
R E8REBR21L of the reporting period of 2 cents
(ZZ—HF: per ordinary share
BREERAL) (2015: 4 cents per ordinary share) 5,759 11,517
8,638 23,034

RESHRERZ DR ZARHBRE
UAREREPRBEIRHAEE -

(i) FETA R EEEmRRZ L — 1 E
FERE  WRAFECEERIK

(i)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a

liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the previous financial

v year, approved and paid during the year
—2-XF —E-1F
2016 2015
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
BRLE—EMRFE Final dividend in respect of the
WRAREEEZAERIKN previous financial year, approved
AEAREBREBRAL  and paid during the year, of
(Z2—-H%F: 4 cents per ordinary share
BRI BERSW) (2015: 8 cents per ordinary share) 11,517 23,035
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24. BEX - RERRE (F) 24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
© BF (c) Share capital
FEEREZEITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—E-RE “E-IF
2016 2015
RHEE RAEE
No. of ct- No. of E-
shares Amount shares Amount
T Tr TR Tr
000 $000 "000 $'000
EE Authorised:
BREMECOITZERR Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
BRARAR: Issued and fully paid:
REERBRREER At beginning of the year and
atend of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
EERFEAGRERTEERZBRE The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
BEAQFREZLERTE—ERER- dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
FEEBEBRHEAQARZRNBEEZRR one vote per share at meetings of the company. All
23 ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the company’s

residual assets.
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24, BEXR - ERRE ()
FEMEERER

(d)

()

(i1)

(iii)

R E
RIEHEHBARZL RO EER
ADRKFAATDZRE  HEBEER
RAOKKREBEE AATREANAE
BEORESEEEREEKBRES
EECEH RO BESTUET
BRAFBD 2 HFRIEEDIK

Bttt
HtRBER-_ZZT_F-8
TTERANZAEEEAMBE
ZHBLARZRAEEERLAES
REZARFACBRITRAZEHEZ
-3

EZ#E

Ei#ERSAAERRESTBEN
EBUBBRRELECERER - Z
EEEEM ST R

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1(s).
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24, BEXR - ERKRE ()
FEMEEREN(E)

(d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EEBGAE
RENTBECEEAZPEE
B OARQARZHEMBATBERL
MEZERGBLAE 2R ARER
SERBIRBREANES - BEFR
U REBESELARFERBE
wA GRREEBRTE) 210%8E 5
AREESRN BEEZESCHEE
HERETMERZ50%5H 1k o It
BESURFERABEEIERAHA
RERAAR HENBRARAZES
SEUMBEREBREEFEBIR
IBHFRENES R-2TZ2RE
TAZt+tHBTAAR B=F
ERF-A—BE EEERTHE
BETEEMT GBI E BB T B
REMESFELER-

T REZEYE G HE
AEBCRL T WREEYELH
B TR EREMRSIEERZ L
REEYAEM 2 FTHR (H&E
1(g) BRE

BHES
ENBRHRERRBER-ZZE_F—
A-t+EAENzEBEAKE
ZHBARER 2EHEEFENA
AARRBEAREZESHITRNG
ZEEBEZZ3E BBz ARHE
B IEEAER o

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses or to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and
no transfer to staff general fund has been made

since.

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.
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24, BEXR - ERRE ()

(e)

U]

A 72 5 1B
REZB-REZA=Z+—H0 > ADIKTAE

NEIRERE R R 2 #EEZER294,073,000
TT(=ZE—FRF :297,487,00070) o AR
EHRE EBERORAHBRESRE
BR2AL(ZE—REF - BRTBERAML) -
&% 55,759,000t (Z B — F & :
11,517,00078) (F5E24(b)(0)) ° LLIERR B
TERAABESHRzEE -

ExEHE
FEBEREACEEZREBEDRELRE
BRE BB RBFECEREELE  Mm
FRERBKEREREZERRREE
BERUNGERFIESHE  HESRRA
EEBHRBHAMFDETRAE -

AEEEEBYEREANERLEARR
B UESRE SRROBREBEEE
RETROEREA 2 BEGFE - EHE
EEERENSCHERRBELRE -

REZE-—AFHE  AEERE-Z-8
FoRE  ERHRARBUESTHRR
TKFRARBEESE - BEFHRHE
BEKF  FAEETRABKNY TRRZK
EE8 - BITHRG BEHNEBRER
HEEENEMBEKF -

AABREMBARBRAZIINBEK 2
BERBERS -

24. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e)

®

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $294,073,000 (2015: $297,487,000).
After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 2 cents per ordinary
share (2015: 4 cents per ordinary share), amounting to
$5,759,000 (2015: $11,517,000) (note 24(b)(i)). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

During 2016, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2015,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to increase the

cash level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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CREABREERAAE

FE RBpEE FNEREBRBIDERAEH
X EFEBBRPEL - ARBEAAEZ
ZERBRAEEEEZZRAMAERAZHE
EEREMNFLNR T -

(@)

FERR
FEEZFERBREEHEVRERERRA
EWREE - EBECHERRZEE
HE UHZEEERMRSEERE-

MEWRRREMERRMES  $EHE
RBHETSEZEEZEFENTREE
G o WEF A ERRE P BRI
TR - ARBRAIRNEESD - W
RENEFEENRFERRSEERPR
KEMENSERE - ZZRKFRBEHE
BREE A E30EI0HREE - RABEIK
HEERBE2ERANALEEMEREERR
HEEAURTE-—SEE - AEEEHE
R 5 18 JE U BR 20 % EL At B WLk 2 AT U =]
S UERRTITKRESEEEEHZ
WIE RS -

ROTEFR-—REAGETRRENHFH
BT AL BEEEYTHERREEFH
THBTEREZEE -

RBEHR  AEEZBRABBEAREKR
B A 2 BlAE FE U BR TR R H fth FE LR R 42
BE215% (ZF—H%F 1 12%) R37% (=
ZE—FHF 136%) °

25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The
group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, 15% (2015: 12%)
and 37% (2015: 36%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest debtor

and the five largest debtors respectively.
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25, SRAREERAAE (A

(@)

(b)

FERR(#E)
BEREERBEEBRSMBRRERA
ETREEIREESR - ARELER
HEMEREBERAHEERRNTH
TR

FHRASEMEEARURR Rt E
BWHEIEzFERB 2 E-—PEBRE
BRMIEE17 ©

REBETER
FEBeHRAEHNEERBESTE -
DREESEANRSHE  WEMER
B eRBEEER -

TRERMEBNBSHRETESH
BEZBTAINRMESE » WATHORET
BREERH (BFRITNERFTEZF
BXd SEZERER  BR|EHRE
ARt E2RMEXH)EoMELE -

HRESEHRBRTETISTEERE
EEZER - SRR EBRIURRZRT
EXRYSREEERNEE - Fit - 5
ZERTENRMS - TREATMBESEE
FHZATHORITRRESRLE - UREERK
ATEHEERENEFE R 2 ER R Y
RERBEE 2B -

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
group has not provided any financial guarantee which

would expose the group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash outflows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current

at the end of the reporting period).

As the directors do not expect the banks would
exercise the rights to demand repayment, the bank
loans subject to repayment on demand clause are
expected to be repayable based on the specific
repayment terms. Hence, for these bank loans, the
following tables show the contractual undiscounted
cash outflows according to the specific repayment
terms and, separately, the impact to the timing of the
cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
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25. CREBEERAAE (& 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(b) REBELRAB (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
“E-5KF
2016
TRRRRRSRL
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
£ mER
BmER  BEER
More than  More than
BEEA Tyear  2yeas  BF#
BEH  —FR@  butless  hutless More REE
On  Within than than than @5 Carrying
demand Tyear  2years  Syears 5 years Total  amount
T n i n T n i
"000 "000 "000 "000 "000 "000 '000
ZREXRBERIER Bank loans subject to repayment
ZRTER on demand clauses:
RETENHEN scheduled repayment = 755 742 2,151 5,457 9,105 8,236
EARSREMELT Trade and other payables - 48,460 - = - 48460 48,460
- a5 742 2151 5457 57565 56,69
REERAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows
MEEEEAURTE on bank loans based on lender's
FRERERERE right to demand repayment 8,236 (755) (742)  @151)  (5457) (869) -
8236 48,460 - - - 5669 56,696
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

25. sREREERDNEE) 25.
(b) REBESER (H) (b)

Liquidity risk (continued)
—ZT-ERF
2015
AHARTRRAETR
Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow

—FRY
B m AR 2 HA IRMEE
Within 1 year B3 Carrying
or on demand Total amount
Tr Tr Tr
"000 "000 "000
FE 1 BR AN e L & {3 3K Trade and other payables 54,742 54,742 54,742

(0 FEE (0
AEBZANZARBETERBIETHE

(i)  FIFELE
TEAAEBRBEHRTE SR
BERSREBEZANZRE

Interest rate risk
The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

variable rate financial liabilities.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets

and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting

period:
—E-RF _E-EF
2016 2015
ERF= ERF=E
Effective Tr Effective Tr
interest rate $000 interest rate $'000
EEMEREHERE " Fixed rate financial assets:
-BITER — Deposits with banks 1.40% 83,125 2.42% 123,057
FEHIZEHEE Variable rate financial
liabilities
-RITER - Bank loans 2.18% (8,236) - -
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25 TRIAREERAAMEE

(0 FIERREK (&)

(i) BBEE W
RZZE-—R"E=ZA=+—8 " &5
FlEggimim HMAO20EEL ™
HthfrE W2 EEEFRE  BIX
EBEzBRBREBEBRBGEM HIR
REBF AR 18 N#K14,0007T

—E-RF Ex)

FHRBBREDMER  BRAEE
BRBEAREE  TARFET
B EAREERZEEHESRFA
Rk AEHAEENEFRY
BER(RREEN ERTE-A
RASBE L ES BRI BRR AL
AREFEZEMESEIR  ¥MEB
BomTEZRESTAMBRN
RAEFNERRE -BHEAITE-T
—hAEMRACEERRE -

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 20 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the group’s loss
after tax and decreased/increased retained profits
by approximately $14,000 (2015: $Nil).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
annualised impact on the group’s loss after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to floating rate instruments which expose
the group to cash flow interest rate risk at that
date. The analysis does not take into account
exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising
from fixed rate instruments as the group does not
hold any fixed rate instruments which are
measured at fair value in the financial statements.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as
2015.
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25, EREREERQAEE)

(d)

EXER
$Elﬁ&2“MH@iEKEEW%
EEERELEE BAKKEZBNEG
EE&%m%%ﬁax%ﬁ=ﬁ¥ﬁ@¥
B2IhEEEN) REN 2 BWIE - BN
MERREHEE - SIBWERR2EEE
ERET BARBT-

MUBTIEAIEEE 2 SEERMS -
BRETERRENETEREN  EHE
REBEGBTHETE - ARBITE
En#s EEEBREBERTERSER
FEREREER @oﬂu@n%ﬁZx
%ﬁé'mm3£ SR TER
REFREzEERARBTK -

RUARBERNGEEB ZEEEEM
5 REUERTEZEEREBEERE
TIRSH Bt 5 KBHUARES
BHoRANBRAFEZEEEREERR
ZiMs BEBRAMAEZEERBRT
Ko

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros, and

Hong Kong dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
except for certain purchases from Europe. Given that
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such
United States dollars denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros, since the volume
of such transactions is not significant, management

considers the exposure to currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2015.
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25 EREREERQAEE)

d) BE¥ERGE)

(i) FrRIEZ BB
TRAASENREHARILI LA
HERDERERTENCEREE
HEBEAEAZ 2ERIMERBFH
HHED e TRTAEBREEERARY
MELQBRFERER (RERERAA
REHBARRFREN M) M
EENER - TROSBEDRRE
HARACEXRHGBBBEEZI 2
Ao RERBBREIWE QT 2
BHRE/MAEENZINEREMEE
MERALTBEEA -

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. The exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance
form part of the net investment in subsidiaries is
excluded. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the group’s

presentation currency are excluded.

FEEZHNERR
Exposure to foreign currencies
(AB®3IR)
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
“E-RE —E-1E
2016 2015
Br B Br B
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Euros dollars Euros dollars
Tr Tr T T
$7000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FE U BR 50 I Lt UK Trade and other receivables = 79,718 - 49,268
RERREEED Cash and cash equivalents - 41 - 41
BARRRHMENR Trade and other payables (3,501) (47,515) (4,681) (40,340)
ERAEEREE Net exposure arising from
FEE 2 BB EE recognised assets and

liabilities (3,501) 32,244 (4,681) 8,969

147



148

25, SRAREERAAE (A

(d)

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ % B% 4 [ 45 it 2+ %] Annual Report 2016 44 it

Sk 5 e o B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 #%5’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

EXER(#) (d)
(i) HBEEDH
TRERMEBANKRENREAE
REBZIEEZREAEZBHAE
EEzBRBE (BR),EFRRE
ERZEEFEE  ERREMLER
BYEFTE -BUTME SREK
Bk ETZENEEERKHLR
RERARAMER 2 EEEBRY

Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the group’s (loss)/profit after tax and
retained profits that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the group entities have
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all

other risk variables remained constant. In this

& respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies.
—B-NF “2-1f
2016 2015
Ex RHEKER RELN Ex BRH&ER REEA
t#/ g/ (H)/ tr/ BH/ (ED)/
(T%) (B4) B (%) 2m 2
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ (Decrease)/  (decrease) (Decrease) (Decrease)/
in foreign  (decrease) increase in foreign increase  increase in
exchange inloss i retained  exchange in profit retained
rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits
r r r r
$'000 $000 $000 $000
B Euros 10% 292 292 10% (391) (391)
(10)% (292) (292) (10)% 391 391
B Hong Kong dollars 5% (1,027) (1,027) 5% 183 183
(5)% 1,027 1,027 (5)% (183) (183)
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25. cREREERAAE(E)

d) BE¥ERGE)

(i) BBEEZH (E)
ERFEVN 2O MEREAEER
BEEMEIMmSAERNEESR
AENESRTRBERRZERR
BMBBTZNKEHEE -

BRESNCBRINEER ZEE
CRAREFNTEXAEEMFELR
S HI R R A £ B H R OMNE ELBR 2
ERTE BEEEBULEES
ﬁﬁﬁz%%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁWEﬁ&
BWERR - k2 M T BESEEBS
%WE“?ZW%%%@%&$%
B2 ERMEE 2EZ8 %R
DMDBU—B-—RF 2R -HEE

1T
(e) ARE
FFEtmMIENREER-Z - ER
—E-RAF=ZA=+-HAZARETE
BEREEZHEIE-

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
Currency risk (continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities” profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of

the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the
group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into
the group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2015.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2016 and 2015.
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26. RIE

@ RZB-AR"FZA=Z+-BAERUB
BRELBEHORBITERRENT :

26.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

— N —E-—0EF

2016 2015

T T

$7000 $'000

SIS Contracted for 499 441

by RZB-—ARF=ZRA=+—H  RETTH
B “‘“%H‘,EJE AERENZ&EAENR
BEMT :

(b) At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

—R"E —Z2-0F

2016 2015

T Fr

$7000 $'000

—FR Within 1 year 105,818 127,566
—F#ERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 85,421 128,615
BB HEF Over 5 years 1,060 6,450
192,299 262,631

FEEREEHEERAE TN - ZS5HE
HN—ROLRBE—2RE > LATRORE
ENERMARREN - HENREES
REFHAE  URRHEHEE -

BREXE cHREBEENRIN  AEEE
RUERE THENERE -—EAIL
EABEENREZHRE -

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to six years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to

reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of revenue for certain leased

properties.
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REEE 27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

REZB-AFTA  AEEAREEB-—RWEQ
A(EEMBLR) EEEN  HEW—2H/
HMREBHRETBERITRESE AR EM 2
BRSHRAEBERLRBRLESR - EFEE
BEZENSHERCEETBWELR
RRBRMLE R REE BB LRBEERS
AELRBRRZAEMNEME - AEECEZREIIR
EEREERERENR  ESKEEALRE
BE2HREMSRER - AUR-F-—REF=
A=+ -RuUERBERRIER®E -

EXBEBALIRS 28.

BRZEVBRBRRAMUTARE XS REH
o REBFTLTHERBBRALZRS !

(@ EBEEBARZIXS

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served and the Hong
Kong Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect
of the above claim. An external counsel has been engaged
to defend the said claim and the directors will continue to
seek advice from the group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim
as at 31 March 2016.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@) Transactions with related companies

—E-—RF “E-RF
2016 2015
Fr T
$’000 $'000
REMEZHEWA Rental income from investment properties 408 526
EEEECEEMX Rental expense for director’s quarters 532 996
BIEE2HERX Rental expense for staff quarter 600 -
ZEERRBAER Rental expense for a retail store
HelX and office space 572 359
AR5 & WA Service fee income 951 954
PR 75 & B8 % Service fee expense 42 93
BAaE N R RE Purchase of fashion apparels and
X B & accessories from a joint venture 80 74
BEMMm Purchase of cosmetic goods 341 573
BEAAK Purchase of samples 9 -
B 0 AR B % EC B T Sales of fashion apparels and
BENT accessories to a joint venture 564 445
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28. EXEBWMALRS (&) 28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@ HBEBARAZIXZ (#) (@) Transactions with related companies (continued)
BB AR L 2SS WA~ HeRX Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
RIBEWA - RIBEFM AR E&ETHEFT service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
HNEHERRBZRARETE - companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

by FTEEEAEME (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TEEEAEHES (BEME7AKREX Remuneration for key management personnel,
NFARARTESZ2HBA)NOT ¢ including amounts paid to the company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

—E-AE “ZE-hfF

2016 2015

Fr Fr

$/000 $000

EHEERER Short-term employee benefits 13,710 15,133
BBRESREA Post-employment benefits 81 90
13,791 15,223
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29. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

“E-XF —E-If
2016 2015
T T Fr Fr

$'000 $'000 $000 $000
kRBEE Non-current assets
RKBAR 2 R Interest in subsidiaries 283,193 266,208
RBEE Current assets
Hib R Other receivables 14,749 34,909
BeRBITER Cash and bank deposits 465 896

15,214 35,805
FBEE Current liabilities
Hitt B Other payables 1,454 1,646
RBEEFE Net current assets 13,760 34,159
EEFE NET ASSETS 296,953 300,367
EXRfEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
B Share capital 2,880 2,880
e Reserves 294,073 297,487
BHAR TOTAL EQUITY 296,953 300,367
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30. Lk F

31.

(ENRERERAMESRIZBEREENEE
4,645,000t E R BE IBIKE » UFER
FEZR2IAR - KEFTZ2MAXNEGER
BRAEER 21 E o

EERBRERE
RZZB-RF=ZA=+—0 EERRLEE
ZEES AR RERERT RASuper Result
Consultants Limited » —"RRAEBHERREHS
MR 2 AT o ZA R EmE A A ARR
i Z Bt ik o

30. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

31.

Provision for onerous contracts of $4,645,000 included
under “Trade and other payables” has been separately
disclosed under “Provisions” to conform to current year’s
presentation. The revised presentation reflects more

appropriately the nature of the balance.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 March 2016, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.
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32. BE-ZE—A"FE=A=1+—HLFEEHE
HEXLRER BT - HWEIARREZ
AR E
BEZZESUBHREATEAH AEETMHAE
CEMZIEBSITRZEMGER  ZZEBITR
HIRENNEBE_E—-A"FE=ZRA=+—HLHF
EMRER  BMREZEVHEHREEN - Z
ZEEUT 2B R EAAEEARER

B may be relevant to the group:

32. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2016 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements. These include the following which

RT3 B8
R2EEBZ

Bt ER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BEHBHEER) - E-——FE-F-AFHH 2 FELE
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

(BEEATKREEAEI105ER(EBGTERD) 285 2185 &
(RETHABEG S ETECHNEELHERTE ]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution

of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture

(BRUBRELRE1VSR BTN KERAEE B 2B E]

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations

(BBEFER BN BT AR KE T2 ]

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

(BB EA) B 16N R(FBEER)E38I 2T
(BEAERZZTERBHT A

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

(BRMB|MELFEOR M T A

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BBUBBREEA)E ISR KEEL L2 W ]

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BEBYBHEER)E 65 HE]
HKFRS 16, Leases

—E-R"E—-HA—H
1 January 2016

1 January 2016

—E-RE-A—H
1 January 2016

—E-Rf-FB—H
1 January 2016

1 January 2016

—E-N\F—-A—H
1 January 2018

—E-NE—-H—H
1 January 2018

—E-NF—-A—H
1 January 2019
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32, BE-E—RE=ZA=1+—HILEEEHE

B RERZIER] - HPLEARREZ

WRERE (&)

ARG E AR RSB RT R AT ZE AR PR
RMEEMEE2ER €5 RTXMLE
I ARBZERBRNZSBRI AR E
BT KA ARl 2 EE XA R I HRRE
MERZE :

(BRBUMBEHEER)E165R HE ]

(BBUBRELEA)FE 165N BBIEEZHN
MAEABAEHEAAHEAEZSFNEERHEZE
15l RHER (BBUBHRELER)E 16355
AB-FEBASFES  BUMAAROER
EEREE HEARAINBRESS - HEIAL
(BBEFE)B1I7RIHEIRERRE
BEEE (ARMBRERBREES) -RES
VR BE-—RLHREEEHE] -

AN SR B 36 S 5 4R A BR AR _E IR 2R R SRS AT o
HCEBYBREER)F 165 S - ERAE
B R TR EEHAEBZEPE 25 - |
EHAEEKEXERYBRRTEEEZ
FEHELEEL -

32.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
(continued)

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the group’s results of operations and

financial position, except for the following:

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 provides comprehensive guidance for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment by
lessees and lessors. In particular, HKFRS 16 introduces a
single lessee accounting model, whereby assets and
liabilities are recognised for all leases, subject to limited
exceptions. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations including HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining

whether an arrangement contains a lease.

The group does not plan to early adopt the above new
standards or amendments. With respect to HKFRS 16, given
the group has not completed its assessment of their full
impact on the group, their possible impact on the group’s
results of operations and financial position has not been

quantified.
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Properties Held for Investment

Hb 3k RERR HH

Address Existing use Lease term

58

A

RiERE145%

B

T D3R JE BHEE
Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road

North Point

Hong Kong Shop Short lease

BB

A

R ERA3I%

fEREE !

1312638 E AR i
Part of Workshop No. 6, 13th Floor

Kodak House I

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

>
g

REHEE

Hong Kong Office Long lease

S

HBF

HEEEE7R

FLAZ s

2612 2R 17 BE FHEE
Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease
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Properties Held for Investment

ih 3iF
Address

58

g

RABE

BMHE81-875%
SBRIEKRE

SEEAKRBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

FEFITAZEANFIEEBRE RAEIE3CRIDE
Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,

Tianfa Building,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC

HEFRYI T RAZREAFIEEBA SN BH2EE
5A5R5A6Z ~ 636A5 ~ 6A6 ~ 6A7R
6ABE LR 7HE7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7A11 ~ 7A12 ~ 7A13 R
7JAT4E

Flats 5A5 and 5A6 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor and
Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and 7A14 on
7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC

RERR

Existing use

iy
m

Warehouse

N

it

Office

BE

Staff quarter

B

Lease term

mHEEE

Medium-term lease

hHEE

Medium-term lease

hHEE

Medium-term lease
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UTEBAERSE_E—-A~"F=ZA=+—HLEHE
FESFCTREENREEREBBZHME -

The following is a summary of the published results and assets

and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2016.
ES RESULTS
BE-ZA=Z+-HLFE
Year ended 31 March
ZE-XF ZE2-1Ff ZT-NF ZT-=F ZE-=fF
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Tr Fr Tr Tr Fr
$/000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
e 3% Revenue 327,996 419,965 458,677 418,895 455,718
ke (BR) wA (Loss)/profit from operations (62,308) 6,642 33,054 24,749 49,446
BMERA Finance costs (158) (1) - (3) (1)
EhEE DTSR Share of loss of associate (419) (188) (219) (28) -
FBiEEERT 2 Share of (loss)/profit of
(&5#8) /&7 joint venture (4,087) 505 (1,019) (327) 255
T REEY Net valuation gains on land
REBREWF and buildings and
ZiEEREFE investment properties 15,558 9,682 1,244 2,360 3,790
HEME 2 WE Gain on disposal of
a property - - - - 65,516
BB (F8) BT (Loss)/profit before taxation (51,414) 16,640 33,060 26,751 119,006
Frig®H Income tax (5,101) (5,309) (5,137) (6,722) (11,856)
FR(EB)BF (Loss)/profit for the year (56,515) 11,331 27,923 20,029 107,150
Sk (E8) BT (Loss)/earnings per share
9N Basic $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10 $0.07 $0.38
g Diluted $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10 $0.07 $0.38
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EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
=A=+-—H
As at 31 March
—E-RE E-hF “E-NEF —B-=F ZFT-_F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
T Fr Fr Fr T
$/000 $'000 $000 $ 000 $000
M- BERRE Property, plant and
equipment 536,790 522,076 466,123 449,365 402,467
Hith&EE Other assets 23,446 18,888 21,885 15,145 12,915
EEMBHEE Deferred tax assets 6,187 8,375 9,238 7,166 8,972
REBEEFE Net current assets 165,768 249,605 295,339 288,857 306,489
BEERARE Total assets less current
BEHE liabilities 732,191 798,944 792,585 760,533 730,843
E(RBEE Non-current liabilities (73,403) (69,867) (63,797) (59,216) (50,242)

658,788 729,077 728,788 701,317 680,601

R A< Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880

&t Reserves 655,908 726,197 725,908 698,437 677,721

658,788 729,077 728,788 701,317 680,601
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